VILNIUS UNIVERSITY

FACULTY OF ECONOMICS AND BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

BUSINESS PROCESS MANAGEMENT (MASTERS STUDIES)

Ijomah Odinaka's Elvis

MASTER THESIS

TITLE IN LITHUANIAN	TITLE IN ENGLISH	
Organizacijos kultūros įtaka BPM iniciatyvų sėkmei: "Meta	č	
	Literature Review and Case Study of	
ananze	Meta Group	

Supervisor: Dr. Zilvinas Zidonis

Table of Contents

Introduction	6
Topic Relevance	6
Topic and Research Gap Exploration	7
Research Novelty/Contribution to Science	7
Research Object	8
Research Aim	8
Research Objectives	8
Research Methods	9
Literature Review	11
1.2 The Challenge of BPM	12
1.3 The Concept of Organizational Culture	13
1.4 Meta Group: A Case Study for Investigation	14
Business Process Management (BPM)	14
Culture and BPM	16
Challenges Posed by Cultural Misalignment	18
Literature Gaps and Future Directions	20
Meta Group and the Power of Cultural Alignment	20
Chapter Summary	21
Chapter Two	23
Research Methodology	23
2.1 Introduction to Bibliometric Analysis	23
2.2 Methodology of Bibliometric Analysis	23
2.3 Publication Trends and Key Insights	24
2.4 Influential Authors and Journals	27
2.5 Comparative Analysis of Findings	28
2.6 Synthesis and Implications	28
2.7 Conclusion	30
Bibliometric Analysis	31
Geographic Trends in Publications on Organizational Culture and BPM Suc	cess31
Temporal Trends in Publications on Organizational Culture and BPM Succe	ss 34
The Influence of Organizational Culture on BPM Outcomes	38

Key Success Factors for BPM Initiatives Within Different	Organizational
Cultures	40
The influence of organizational culture on BPM outcomes	43
Key success factors for BPM initiatives	47
Actionable insights and recommendations	52
Interview Responses	55
Discussion	59
Conclusion	61
Reference List	64
Appendices	69
Appendix 1 - Article Extractions	69
Appendix 2: Questionnaire	117
Appendix 3 - Interview Question	125
Appendix 4 - SPSS Output	127

Summary of Master Thesis

THE INFLUENCE OF ORGANIZATIONAL CULTURE ON THE SUCCESS OF BPM INITIATIVES: A LITERATURE REVIEW AND CASE STUDY OF META GROUP

Elvis IJOMAH

Master Thesis Faculty of Economics and Business Administration Vilnius University Supervisor: Dr. Zilvinas Zidonis

Vilnius, 2025

SUMMARY

68 pages, 9 tables, 4 figures, 43 references.

The main purpose of this thesis is to investigate how organizational culture influences the success of Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives, with a specific case study on Meta Group. The study explores the interplay between organizational culture and BPM, identifying key factors such as leadership, collaboration, and technological integration.

This master thesis comprises three main sections:

- 1. Literature Review Discusses organizational culture frameworks and BPM principles, emphasizing their interdependence and impact on organizational performance.
- 2. **Methodology** Outlines a mixed-methods approach, combining bibliometric analysis and case study research to identify trends and relationships within existing literature and practical BPM implementations.
- Findings and Recommendations Analyzes survey and interview data from Meta Group, revealing critical success factors like cultural alignment, employee engagement, and leadership support for BPM success.

Key insights from the research include:

- Positive organizational culture enhances BPM outcomes by fostering collaboration, reducing resistance to change, and promoting innovation.
- Training programs and technological tools are essential for sustaining BPM improvements but must align with cultural dynamics.
- Challenges like siloed communication and resistance highlight the need for targeted change management strategies.

The study concludes with actionable recommendations for integrating organizational culture into BPM strategies, advocating for leadership-driven initiatives, structured collaboration, and adaptive training modules. These findings aim to guide practitioners in leveraging culture to optimize BPM outcomes and provide a foundation for future research.

Section A

Introduction

Topic Relevance

Organizational culture is a key determinant of an organization's ability to effectively implement Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives. Organizational culture encompasses the shared values, beliefs, and norms that shape the behavior and attitudes of employees within an organization. A strong and positive organizational culture can facilitate BPM success by fostering a supportive environment for change, encouraging collaboration and innovation, and aligning employee behavior with organizational goals (Akpa, Asikhia and Nneji, 2021).

On the other hand, a negative or dysfunctional organizational culture can hinder BPM success by creating resistance to change, fostering siloed thinking and behavior, and undermining the alignment between individual and organizational objectives. Therefore, understanding the role of organizational culture in BPM is critical for organizations seeking to improve their business processes and achieve strategic objectives (Rekogama, 2022).

The literature review in the next chapter will explore existing research on organizational culture and BPM to provide a theoretical framework for understanding how organizational culture influences BPM outcomes. This review will highlight key concepts and theories related to organizational culture, such as the competing values framework, organizational climate, and cultural dimensions theory, and examine how these concepts apply to BPM.

Additionally, this chapter will present a case study analysis of Meta Group, a company known for its successful BPM implementation. The case study will provide a real-world example of how organizational culture can impact BPM outcomes and illustrate key success factors and challenges. By combining theoretical insights with empirical evidence, this chapter aims to provide a comprehensive understanding of the influence of organizational culture on the success of BPM initiatives.

Topic and Research Gap Exploration

The existing literature on Business Process Management (BPM) and organizational culture provides valuable insights into their individual impacts on organizational performance (Saravia-Vergara, Sanchís-Pedregosa and Albort-Morant, 2023). However, there is a noticeable gap in research that comprehensively examines how organizational culture influences the success of BPM initiatives. Existing studies often focus on specific aspects of either BPM or organizational culture, such as the role of leadership in BPM or the impact of organizational values on culture, neglecting the holistic view necessary for a thorough understanding of their interplay (Benraad et al., 2022).

This research aims to bridge this gap by providing a comprehensive analysis that combines theoretical insights with empirical evidence from a case study of Meta Group. By examining the influence of organizational culture on BPM outcomes from a holistic perspective, this study seeks to uncover nuanced relationships and identify key success factors that may have been overlooked in previous research. Additionally, the inclusion of a case study adds depth and richness to the research, offering realworld examples and practical implications for organizations seeking to improve their BPM initiatives.

By combining theoretical insights with empirical evidence, this research aims to contribute to the existing body of knowledge by providing a more nuanced understanding of how organizational culture influences the success of BPM initiatives. This comprehensive analysis will not only fill a gap in the literature but also provide practical recommendations for organizations looking to improve their BPM outcomes.

Research Novelty/Contribution to Science

This research contributes to the existing body of knowledge by offering a comprehensive understanding of how organizational culture influences the success of BPM initiatives. By combining theoretical insights with empirical evidence, this study provides practical recommendations for organizations seeking to improve their BPM outcomes. Additionally, the inclusion of a case study analysis adds depth and richness to the research, offering valuable insights into real-world practices and challenges.

Research Problem and Question

The main research problem addressed in this study is: How does organizational culture influence the success of BPM initiatives? To answer this question, the following sub-questions will be explored:

- i. What is the role of organizational culture in BPM?
- ii. How do different types of organizational cultures impact BPM outcomes?
- iii. What are the key success factors for BPM initiatives within different organizational cultures?

Research Object

The main object of this research is to analyze the influence of organizational culture on the success of BPM initiatives. This will be achieved through a thorough literature review and a case study analysis of Meta Group, a company known for its successful BPM implementation.

Research Aim

The aim of this research is to provide a comprehensive analysis of how organizational culture influences the success of BPM initiatives. By identifying key success factors and challenges, this study aims to offer practical recommendations for organizations seeking to improve their BPM outcomes.

Research Objectives

The specific objectives of this research are:

- i. To review the literature on organizational culture and BPM.
- ii. To analyze the influence of organizational culture on BPM outcomes.
- iii. To identify key success factors for BPM initiatives within different organizational cultures.
- iv. To provide practical recommendations for organizations seeking to improve their BPM outcomes.

Research Methods

This research will employ both theoretical and bibliometric methods. Theoretical methods will include a comprehensive literature review of existing studies on organizational culture and BPM.

Master Thesis Structure

This master thesis will be structured to provide a comprehensive analysis of the influence of organizational culture on the success of Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives. It will begin with an introduction that provides an overview of the research topic, its significance, and the objectives of the study. Following the introduction, the thesis will include a literature review that explores existing research on BPM, organizational culture, and their interplay. This section will review key concepts, theories, and empirical findings related to the influence of organizational culture on BPM outcomes.

The methodology section will outline the research design, data collection methods, and data analysis techniques used in the study. This section will provide insight into how the research was conducted and how the findings were obtained. The thesis will then present a case study analysis of Meta Group, a company known for its successful BPM implementation. This case study will highlight key findings and discuss their implications, integrating them with the literature review to provide a comprehensive understanding of the research topic.

The findings and discussion section will present the findings of the study and discuss their implications for theory and practice. This section will analyze the results of the case study and relate them to the broader literature on BPM and organizational culture. Finally, the thesis will conclude with a summary of the key findings, a discussion of their implications, and recommendations for organizations seeking to improve their BPM outcomes. The thesis will also include a list of references and any appendices necessary to support the research.

Literature Review

This chapter lays the groundwork for a comprehensive exploration of the influence of organizational culture on the success of BPM initiatives. It begins with a critical review of existing literature. This review will delve into the theoretical underpinnings of the relationship between culture and BPM. It will examine how different cultural archetypes can impact the adoption and effectiveness of BPM practices. The literature review will also identify key cultural characteristics that foster a BPM-friendly environment.

1.1 Business Process Management

In the ever-evolving world of business, where agility and optimization reign supreme, Business Process Management (BPM) stands as a powerful conductor, orchestrating a symphony of efficiency. It's a holistic approach that transcends mere technology implementation, delving into the very core of how an organization functions. At its heart, BPM is a structured methodology for identifying, analyzing, designing, implementing, and monitoring the intricate web of activities that make up an organization's operations (Ubaid and Dweiri, 2020). These processes encompass everything from fulfilling customer orders to onboarding new employees, and managing finances to developing products.

The true magic of BPM lies in its ability to not just identify these processes, but to optimize them. Through a series of analytical tools and techniques, BPM helps organizations streamline operations, eliminating redundancies and inefficiencies that can plague even the most well-intentioned businesses (Simon, 2022). Imagine a complex order fulfillment process riddled with unnecessary approvals and handoffs. BPM can identify these bottlenecks, allowing for a redesign that streamlines communication and expedites delivery times.

The benefits of BPM extend far beyond internal efficiency. By optimizing processes, organizations can reduce costs, streamline operations, and enhance customer satisfaction (Bartlett, Kabir and Han, 2023). Streamlined processes naturally translate to reduced operational costs by eliminating unnecessary steps and automating tasks, freeing up resources. This efficiency also leads to faster turnaround times, fewer errors, and a more consistent customer experience, ultimately enhancing customer

satisfaction and loyalty. Additionally, BPM often involves data analysis and process mapping, providing valuable insights into how the organization functions (Arcentales-Carrion et al., 2020). This data empowers better-informed decision-making across all levels of the organization. Furthermore, optimized processes are more adaptable, allowing organizations to respond quicker to changing market demands and competitive pressures, increasing agility.BPM isn't a one-time fix; it's a continuous cycle of improvement. By constantly monitoring and analyzing processes, organizations can identify areas for further optimization, ensuring they remain competitive and efficient in the ever-changing business landscape.

In essence, BPM acts as a powerful conductor, leading the various departments and activities within an organization to work in harmonious concert. By focusing on process optimization, BPM empowers businesses to achieve a state of operational excellence, delivering enhanced value to both customers and stakeholders alike.

1.2 The Challenge of BPM

Successfully implementing Business Process Management (BPM) goes beyond technical aspects; it requires a supportive organizational culture. Organizational culture, defined by shared values, beliefs, and behaviors, profoundly influences how employees engage with BPM initiatives (Benraad et al., 2022). A culture that embraces change, collaboration, and continuous improvement is essential for BPM success, while a resistant or siloed culture can impede progress. A culture that embraces change is crucial. BPM often involves significant changes to established processes, which can be met with resistance. A culture that values innovation and adaptability can help employees embrace these changes more readily. Leadership plays a crucial role in fostering this culture by modeling openness to change and encouraging experimentation.

Collaboration is key to BPM success. Processes often span multiple departments or teams, requiring cross-functional collaboration. A culture that encourages teamwork and breaks down silos enables smoother BPM implementation (Barbeau, 2022). This collaboration can lead to a more holistic understanding of processes and identify areas for improvement that may not be apparent from a single department's perspective. A culture of continuous improvement is essential for sustaining BPM success. BPM is

not a one-time project but an ongoing journey of refinement. A culture that values learning from successes and failures, and actively seeks ways to improve, is better equipped to realize the full potential of BPM. This culture of continuous improvement fosters an environment where employees are empowered to suggest and implement process enhancements.

Conversely, a culture characterized by resistance to change, siloed work environments, and a lack of transparency can significantly hinder BPM success. Resistance to change can manifest as reluctance to adopt new processes or technologies, slowing down BPM initiatives (Abdikarim, 2023). Siloed work environments, where departments operate in isolation, can lead to inefficiencies and misaligned processes. Additionally, a lack of transparency can result in a lack of understanding of BPM goals and strategies, leading to disengagement and apathy towards BPM initiatives.

Hence, organizational culture plays a crucial role in BPM success. A culture that embraces change, fosters collaboration, and values continuous improvement is essential for realizing the full potential of BPM. Leaders must actively work to cultivate such a culture, as it can make or break BPM initiatives.

1.3 The Concept of Organizational Culture

Organizational culture is a dynamic and multifaceted concept that plays a crucial role in shaping the behavior and attitudes of individuals within an organization. It encompasses the shared values, beliefs, and norms that guide employee conduct and interactions, ultimately influencing organizational performance and success (Alateeg and Alhammadi, 2024). One key aspect of organizational culture is its role in shaping employee behavior. Organizational culture helps to define the boundaries of acceptable behavior within an organization, guiding employees on how to act and make decisions. For example, a culture that values transparency and open communication may encourage employees to speak up and share their ideas, while a culture that values hierarchy and authority may discourage such behavior.

Organizational culture also plays a critical role in shaping employee attitudes and perceptions. A positive culture that promotes trust, collaboration, and inclusivity can lead to higher levels of employee engagement and satisfaction. Conversely, a negative culture characterized by distrust, conflict, or unfairness can lead to low morale and high turnover (Jerónimo, Henriques and Carvalho, 2022). Furthermore, organizational culture can impact organizational performance in various ways. A strong and positive culture that aligns with the organization's goals and values can drive employee motivation and commitment, leading to higher levels of productivity and performance. On the other hand, a culture that is misaligned with the organization's goals and values can hinder performance and impede organizational growth.

Hence, organizational culture is a complex and multifaceted concept that shapes employee behavior, attitudes, and perceptions within an organization. By understanding and cultivating a positive culture, organizations can create an environment that fosters employee engagement, collaboration, and ultimately, organizational success.

1.4 Meta Group: A Case Study for Investigation

Meta Group, an ICT company experiencing substantial growth, is an intriguing case study for examining the impact of organizational culture on BPM initiatives. As Meta Group seeks to streamline its core operations through BPM, its cultural landscape becomes a critical factor in determining the success of this initiative (Lee, 2021). Analyzing Meta Group's culture can reveal potential challenges and opportunities for BPM implementation. For example, if Meta Group's culture values innovation and adaptability, employees may be more receptive to the changes brought about by BPM. On the other hand, if the culture is resistant to change or characterized by siloed work environments, BPM implementation may face significant hurdles.

In subsequent chapters, we will delve deeper into Meta Group's cultural landscape and explore strategies to leverage or adapt its culture to ensure the success of its BPM initiative. By doing so, we aim to provide insights and practical guidance for organizations facing similar challenges in their BPM journey.

Business Process Management (BPM)

Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives are strategic efforts undertaken by organizations to streamline and optimize their workflows, with the ultimate goal of improving efficiency, agility, and performance. While BPM offers a structured approach to process improvement, its success is often influenced by various factors, one of the most significant being organizational culture (Bartlett, Kabir and Han, 2023). Organizational culture encompasses the shared values, beliefs, norms, and behaviors that define how members of an organization interact and work together. It plays a critical role in shaping employee attitudes and behaviors towards change, including the adoption of new processes and technologies associated with BPM initiatives.

The relationship between culture and BPM has been the subject of considerable research. Scholars have highlighted the importance of aligning BPM efforts with the existing culture of an organization to enhance their effectiveness. A culture that values innovation, collaboration, and continuous improvement, for example, is likely to be more conducive to BPM success than one that is resistant to change or overly focused on hierarchy and control (Shafagatova and Van Looy, 2021). Several key themes have emerged from the literature on culture and BPM. One of these is the concept of "cultural fit," which refers to the degree to which BPM practices align with the values and norms of an organization. Studies have shown that a strong cultural fit can lead to greater employee buy-in, improved communication, and higher levels of BPM success.

Another important theme is the role of leadership in shaping culture and driving BPM initiatives. Leaders who promote a culture of openness, transparency, and empowerment are more likely to see their BPM efforts succeed. They play a crucial role in setting the tone for change and creating a supportive environment for BPM implementation (Idogawa, Bizarrias and Câmara, 2023). To illustrate these concepts in practice, this review includes a case study of Meta Group (formerly Facebook). Meta Group has been widely recognized for its innovative culture, which places a strong emphasis on collaboration, experimentation, and user-centric design. These cultural values have played a significant role in the company's approach to BPM, enabling it to develop and implement processes that are agile, customer-focused, and responsive to changing market conditions.

In conclusion, the relationship between culture and BPM is complex and multifaceted. Organizational culture can either facilitate or hinder BPM success, depending on its alignment with BPM principles and practices. By understanding and leveraging the cultural dynamics within their organizations, leaders can enhance the effectiveness of their BPM initiatives and drive sustainable business improvement.

Culture and BPM

Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives are essential for organizations looking to enhance their operational efficiency and effectiveness. These initiatives aim to streamline workflows, optimize processes, and improve overall performance. However, the success of BPM initiatives often depends on the organization's culture. Organizational culture encompasses the values, beliefs, and behaviors that shape how work is done within an organization (Carvalho et al., 2021). A positive and supportive culture can greatly facilitate the implementation of BPM initiatives, while a negative or resistant culture can hinder progress.

One key aspect of organizational culture that influences BPM success is its attitude towards change management. A culture that values continuous improvement and is open to change is more likely to embrace new BPM processes and technologies. Employees in such a culture are more receptive to new ideas and are willing to adapt their work practices to align with BPM objectives (Binci, Belisari and Appolloni, 2020). On the other hand, a culture that is resistant to change can impede BPM initiatives, as employees may be reluctant to adopt new processes or technologies.

Empowering employees is another crucial element of a culture conducive to BPM success. A culture that empowers employees encourages them to take ownership of their work and participate actively in BPM initiatives. Empowered employees are more likely to identify and address process inefficiencies, leading to improved overall performance (Benraad et al., 2022). Additionally, empowerment fosters a sense of accountability, as employees feel responsible for the outcomes of BPM initiatives.

Open and transparent communication is also essential for BPM success. A culture of open communication ensures that information flows freely within the organization, enabling employees to stay informed about BPM initiatives and provide feedback.

Transparent communication builds trust and fosters collaboration, both of which are critical for BPM implementation (Martinez et al., 2024). Collaboration is another key aspect of a culture conducive to BPM success. A collaborative culture promotes teamwork and cross-functional cooperation, which are essential for successful BPM implementation. By working together, employees can leverage their diverse skills and perspectives to identify and address process inefficiencies more effectively.

Supportive leadership is also crucial for BPM success. Leaders who are committed to BPM initiatives and actively support their implementation can inspire employees and create a positive organizational culture. Supportive leaders provide guidance and direction, aligning organizational goals with BPM objectives (Marcus, 2021). Organizational culture plays a critical role in the success of BPM initiatives. A positive and supportive culture that values change management, empowers employees, promotes open and transparent communication, encourages collaboration, and is supported by leadership is essential for BPM success. Organizations that cultivate such a culture are better positioned to achieve their BPM objectives and drive continuous improvement.

Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives are instrumental in enhancing organizational efficiency and effectiveness. However, the successful implementation of BPM often depends on the organization's culture (Suša Vugec et al., 2020). Organizational culture, defined as the shared values, beliefs, and behaviors that shape how work is done within an organization, plays a crucial role in determining how well BPM initiatives are received and integrated into daily operations. One key aspect of organizational culture that influences BPM is the attitude towards change. BPM often involves significant changes to existing processes, systems, and ways of working. A culture that embraces change and values continuous improvement is more likely to support BPM initiatives. Employees in such cultures are more willing to adapt to new processes and technologies associated with BPM, making the implementation process smoother and more successful.

In conclusion, organizational culture plays a critical role in the success of BPM initiatives. A culture that embraces change, encourages collaboration, and values communication is more likely to support BPM and reap its benefits. Organizations

looking to implement BPM should assess their existing culture and take steps to cultivate a culture that is conducive to BPM success.

Transparency and accountability are foundational elements of a successful BPM implementation. In an organization with a culture of transparency, there is openness in communication, decision-making processes, and access to information. This transparency helps employees understand the rationale behind BPM initiatives, the changes being implemented, and how these changes will impact their roles and responsibilities.

Challenges Posed by Cultural Misalignment

Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives are essential for organizations seeking to improve efficiency and effectiveness. However, the success of these initiatives is often contingent on organizational culture. A positive and supportive culture can significantly impact the outcomes of BPM initiatives. One key aspect is the willingness to embrace change. In cultures where change is seen as a natural part of growth and improvement, employees are more likely to adapt to new processes and technologies associated with BPM (Seymour and Koopman, 2022). This adaptability is crucial for the successful implementation of BPM, as it allows organizations to respond to market changes and evolving customer needs effectively.

Another important aspect of culture is collaboration. BPM often requires crossfunctional collaboration, as processes often span multiple departments. A culture that values collaboration and encourages open communication between departments can significantly enhance the effectiveness of BPM initiatives. When employees feel empowered to share ideas and work together towards common goals, BPM projects are more likely to succeed (Schmiedel, Recker and vom Brocke, 2020). Transparency and accountability are also key components of a supportive culture. In organizations where transparency is upheld, employees are more likely to trust the intentions behind BPM initiatives and understand the need for change. Similarly, a culture of accountability ensures that employees take ownership of their roles in the BPM process, leading to more efficient and effective implementation. Employee engagement is another critical factor. In cultures where employee engagement is high, employees are more likely to be committed to the success of BPM initiatives. This commitment can lead to higher levels of innovation, productivity, and overall success in BPM projects. Conversely, a culture that is misaligned with BPM principles can create significant challenges (Negros, 2022). Resistance to change is a common issue, especially in cultures that are averse to change. Without buy-in from employees, BPM initiatives are likely to face significant hurdles. Similarly, poor communication, lack of leadership support, inadequate training, and a bureaucratic culture can all hinder BPM initiatives.

To overcome these challenges, organizations must focus on building a culture that supports BPM principles. This includes fostering a culture of change, encouraging collaboration, upholding transparency and accountability, and promoting employee engagement. By doing so, organizations can create an environment where BPM initiatives can thrive, leading to improved efficiency, effectiveness, and overall success. Departmental silos, often characterized by a silo mentality, can present significant challenges to BPM initiatives (Osagie, 2021). Silos refer to the isolated nature of departments or groups within an organization, where information, resources, and goals are not shared or aligned with the broader organizational objectives. This siloed approach can hinder collaboration and communication between departments, making it challenging to implement standardized processes across the organization.

One of the key issues with departmental silos is the lack of information sharing. Departments operating in silos tend to hoard information, leading to duplication of efforts and inefficiencies. This lack of transparency can also result in misaligned goals and priorities, as departments may focus solely on their own objectives rather than the organization's overall strategy. Another challenge posed by silos is the difficulty in implementing standardized processes (Meuleman, 2021). BPM initiatives often aim to standardize and streamline processes across the organization to improve efficiency and effectiveness. However, in organizations with strong silos, different departments may have their own processes that are applicable across the organization.

Literature Gaps and Future Directions

Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives are pivotal for organizations seeking to enhance operational efficiency and adaptability. However, the success of BPM projects is not solely contingent on the technical aspects of process design and implementation; organizational culture plays a crucial role. This review delves into the existing literature to elucidate the intricate relationship between culture and BPM, underpinned by a case study of Meta Group (formerly Facebook), which offers practical insights into these concepts.

While existing research provides valuable insights, there are several gaps that future studies could explore. One area is quantifying the impact of culture on BPM success. Developing metrics to measure this impact could help organizations assess the effectiveness of their cultural initiatives. Additionally, more research is needed on industry-specific considerations, as cultural influences may vary across different industries. Finally, studying the long-term sustainability of a culture that supports BPM initiatives could provide insights into maintaining such a culture over time. Addressing these gaps could help organizations create cultures that support BPM initiatives and drive long-term success.

Meta Group and the Power of Cultural Alignment

Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives are critical for organizations seeking to streamline operations and enhance efficiency. However, the success of BPM efforts is often contingent on the organization's culture. Research has shown that organizational culture plays a pivotal role in shaping how BPM initiatives are perceived, adopted, and sustained within an organization (Ferreira and Abreu, 2018). A positive organizational culture can greatly facilitate the implementation of BPM initiatives. Cultures that value innovation, collaboration, and continuous improvement are more likely to embrace the changes that come with BPM. These cultures foster an environment where employees are encouraged to suggest and implement process improvements, leading to increased efficiency and effectiveness (Sarstedt et al., 2019). Conversely, organizational objectives may struggle to implement BPM initiatives successfully. Resistance to change can manifest in various forms, such as employees being unwilling to adopt new processes or managers resisting efforts to streamline workflows. These cultural barriers can hinder the effectiveness of BPM initiatives and prevent organizations from realizing their full potential (Ferreira and Abreu, 2018). One of the key challenges organizations face is breaking down silos between departments. Departmental silos can impede collaboration and communication, making it difficult to implement BPM initiatives that require cross-functional teamwork. Cultures that promote collaboration and transparency are better equipped to overcome these challenges and implement BPM initiatives that span multiple departments (Sarstedt et al., 2019).

To address these challenges, organizations must focus on cultivating a culture that supports BPM. This involves promoting values such as transparency, accountability, and employee engagement. By fostering a culture that embraces change and values process improvement, organizations can create an environment where BPM initiatives can thrive, leading to increased efficiency, innovation, and competitive advantage (Ferreira and Abreu, 2018).

Chapter Summary

Business Process Management (BPM) is a holistic approach to optimizing organizational processes, aiming to enhance efficiency and agility. It involves identifying, analyzing, designing, implementing, and monitoring processes to streamline operations and improve customer satisfaction. BPM goes beyond technology implementation, focusing on the fundamental functions of an organization. Its strength lies in its ability to identify and eliminate inefficiencies, leading to cost reduction, improved operational efficiency, and enhanced customer satisfaction. Successfully implementing BPM requires a supportive organizational culture that embraces change, collaboration, and continuous improvement. Leaders play a crucial role in fostering this culture by modeling openness to change and encouraging teamwork. Organizational culture profoundly influences employee behavior, attitudes, and perceptions, making it essential for BPM success. By cultivating a positive culture that values change, collaboration, and continuous improvement, organizations

can create an environment that supports and enhances BPM initiatives, ultimately leading to operational excellence and organizational success.

Chapter Two

Research Methodology

2.1 Introduction to Bibliometric Analysis

Bibliometric analysis is a vital tool for systematically examining and synthesizing scientific literature to uncover trends, themes, and relationships within a specific research domain (Passas, 2024). In the context of this study, bibliometric analysis is employed to understand how organizational culture influences the success of Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives. This chapter applies both systematic and comparative methods to critically analyze the body of literature, focusing on the volume, diversity, and impact of research conducted between 2000 and 2023. Through this approach, insights are generated regarding the academic landscape, including prominent authors, influential journals, and emerging areas of focus within the field (Marzi et al., 2024).

The bibliometric analysis also provides a quantitative foundation for the case study on Meta Group, highlighting practical implications of scholarly findings (Mejia et al., 2021). By identifying and categorizing the key cultural dimensions associated with BPM success, the analysis establishes a structured framework for understanding how cultural factors shape organizational outcomes. This dual approach of systematic literature review and contextual case study strengthens the reliability and applicability of the findings (García-Peñalvo et al., 2022).

2.2 Methodology of Bibliometric Analysis

To ensure a rigorous bibliometric analysis, a systematic search was conducted across academic databases such as Scopus, Web of Science, and Google Scholar. Keywords like "organizational culture," "BPM success," "business process management," and "process improvement" were used to retrieve relevant studies. Filters were applied to include peer-reviewed articles, conference proceedings, and high-impact reviews published between 2000 and 2023. A final sample of 200 articles was selected based on citation impact, relevance, and recency, ensuring a balanced representation of theoretical and empirical studies.

Advanced tools like VOSviewer and CiteSpace were utilized to visualize networks of authorship, citation patterns, and thematic clusters. Metrics such as citation counts, co-citation analysis, and keyword co-occurrence helped identify influential authors, journals, and research clusters. This methodology allowed for the comparative evaluation of key themes, providing a robust foundation for synthesizing insights into the relationship between organizational culture and BPM initiatives (Koblianska et al., 2023).

2.3 Publication Trends and Key Insights

The publication trend in this domain has seen steady growth, particularly from 2010 onward, reflecting increasing recognition of organizational culture's pivotal role in BPM success. Early research primarily focused on technical and procedural aspects of BPM, but recent studies have expanded to explore the human and cultural dimensions. This shift highlights the evolving understanding that BPM success relies not only on process efficiency but also on aligning cultural practices with strategic objectives.

A deeper analysis reveals that adaptability, leadership, and cultural alignment with BPM principles are recurring themes in the literature. Studies frequently emphasize that organizations with supportive cultural environments report higher levels of BPM adoption and sustainability (Seymour and Koopman, 2022; Szelągowski and Berniak-Woźny, 2024). For instance, collaborative cultures enable cross-departmental synergy, while leadership-driven cultures provide clear vision and motivation for BPM initiatives (Schmiedel et al., 2020). These insights serve as critical points of reference for analyzing the Meta Group case study.

Keyword	Authors	Trends	Insights
	1. Schein		
	(1992) 2.		
	Hofstede		
	(2001) 3.		
	Cameron &		
	Quinn (2011)		Strong cultural
	4. Alvesson	Emphasis on	alignment with
	(2012) 5.	culture's influence	BPM objectives
Organizational	Denison et al.	on decision-making,	fosters innovation
Culture	(2006) 6.	innovation, and	and reduces
	Kotter (1996)	employee behavior	organizational
	7. Schneider et	in BPM initiatives.	resistance to
	al. (2013) 8.		change.
	Ashkanasy et		
	al. (2011) 9.		
	Martin (2002)		
	10. Tsui et al.		
	(2006)		
	1. Vom Brocke		
	(2016) 2.		
BPM Success	Harmon (2015)	Increasing focus on	BPM success is
	3. Rosemann	leadership, cultural	heavily influenced
	(2017) 4.	diagnostics, and	by proactive
	Weske (2012)	performance	cultural change
	5. Hammer	measurement as	management and
	(1990) 6.	critical factors.	leadership support.
	Davenport		
	(2013) 7. de		

Tabular Representation of Bibliometric Analysis

	(2005) 8. Bandara et al. (2010) 9. Kohlbacher (2010) 10. Trkman (2010) 1. Weske (2012) 2.		
Business Process Management	Davenport (2013) 3. Smith & Fingar (2007) 4. Harmon (2015) 5. Van der Aalst et al. (2004) 6. Reijers (2006) 7. Jeston & Nelis (2014) 8. Rosemann & Vom Brocke (2010) 9. Becker et al. (2013) 10. Pritchard & Armistead (1999)	Evolution from technical frameworks to human-centric BPM paradigms integrating employee behavior and leadership.	Process-centric strategies that consider cultural nuances outperform those focused solely on efficiency metrics.

Process Improvement	1. Deming (1986) 2. Juran (1989) 3. Ishikawa (1985) 4. Hammer (1990) 5. Harmon (2015) 6. Liker (2004) 7. Womack & Jones (2003) Jones (2003) 8. Trkman (2010) 9. Vom Brocke et al. (2014) 10. Antony (2006) Antony (2006) Antony (2006)	Process improvement is increasingly linked to cultural adaptability and data-driven methodologies.	Continuous improvement cultures drive better BPM outcomes, focusing on customer satisfaction and efficiency.
------------------------	--	--	---

2.4 Influential Authors and Journals

The field of BPM and organizational culture features contributions from several leading scholars, including Harmon (2015), who has extensively explored BPM frameworks, and Vom Brocke et al. (2020), who focused on cultural diagnostics for BPM success. Rosemann (2015) introduced process-centric culture as a concept, advocating for its integration into BPM practices. These scholars have laid the foundation for linking cultural factors with operational performance, providing actionable insights for practitioners and academics alike.

Prominent journals such as the Business Process Management Journal and Organization Science have been instrumental in advancing the discourse. These publications serve as platforms for theoretical exploration and empirical validation, often featuring special issues dedicated to BPM-related cultural challenges. The frequent citation of these works underscores their significance in shaping the research landscape, making them key resources for ongoing and future studies.

2.5 Comparative Analysis of Findings

The comparative synthesis of the literature identifies three dominant cultural dimensions that influence BPM success: leadership-driven culture, collaboration-focused culture, and process-oriented culture. Leadership-driven cultures prioritize strong visionary leadership that aligns organizational values with BPM goals (Al-Abdallah et al., 2023). Collaboration-focused cultures emphasize teamwork, which is vital for cross-departmental initiatives and knowledge sharing. Process-oriented cultures (Cairney and Toomey, 2024), meanwhile, focus on continuous improvement and customer satisfaction, fostering an environment conducive to BPM adoption.

In the Meta Group context, these cultural dimensions are evident in their BPM practices. Leadership plays a critical role in guiding organizational transformation, while a collaborative culture ensures stakeholder engagement at all levels. The alignment of these cultural factors with BPM objectives enhances organizational resilience and performance. The Meta Group's ability to institutionalize these practices offers a real-world demonstration of the theoretical insights derived from the literature.

2.6 Synthesis and Implications

The synthesis of bibliometric findings with the Meta Group case study underscores the critical importance of cultural alignment in BPM success. Organizational culture acts as both a facilitator and a barrier to BPM adoption, depending on how well it aligns with process objectives (Sankala, 2024). Early-stage cultural diagnostics, as highlighted in the literature, are essential for identifying potential resistance points and tailoring BPM strategies accordingly. These insights are particularly relevant for Meta Group, where cultural transformation has been integral to scaling BPM initiatives globally.

The implications of this analysis extend beyond academia to inform practice. For policymakers and managers, understanding cultural dimensions offers a pathway to designing BPM interventions that resonate with organizational values and behaviors. The Meta Group's success in leveraging cultural alignment to drive BPM outcomes serves as a model for other organizations seeking to optimize their processes through culture-sensitive strategies.

Methodology for Survey and Interview

This study employs a mixed-methods approach, combining surveys and interviews to investigate the influence of organizational culture on the success of BPM (Business Process Management) initiatives, with a particular focus on the Meta Group. The survey component is designed to quantitatively assess key dimensions of organizational culture and BPM outcomes. A structured questionnaire, based on a 5point Likert scale, captures respondents' perceptions of organizational culture (e.g., support for BPM initiatives, leadership involvement) and BPM outcomes (e.g., process efficiency, employee engagement). Fifty respondents, drawn from diverse roles and departments within Meta Group, were purposively selected to provide a representative cross-section of the organization. Data collected from the survey are analyzed using descriptive statistics, correlation analysis, and regression modeling in SPSS to identify relationships between organizational culture variables and BPM success factors.

The qualitative component involves semi-structured interviews to delve deeper into the nuanced experiences and perceptions of employees regarding BPM initiatives. A total of 10 interviews are conducted with participants selected based on their involvement in BPM activities and organizational culture initiatives, ensuring a mix of perspectives from operational staff to senior leaders. The interview protocol is structured around key themes, including leadership influence, training programs, use of technology, and challenges in BPM implementation. Interviews are recorded, transcribed, and thematically analyzed to uncover patterns and insights that may not be apparent in the survey data. The qualitative findings are triangulated with the quantitative results to provide a comprehensive understanding of the interplay between organizational culture and BPM outcomes.

By combining surveys and interviews, this methodology allows for both breadth and depth in examining the research problem. Surveys provide statistically robust data on patterns and correlations, while interviews enrich the analysis with detailed, contextspecific insights. This mixed-methods approach ensures that the findings are not only rigorous but also grounded in the lived experiences of employees within Meta Group, making the recommendations for improving BPM initiatives both practical and actionable. The integration of quantitative and qualitative data enhances the validity and reliability of the research and contributes to the growing literature on the role of organizational culture in BPM success.

2.7 Conclusion

This chapter demonstrates the value of bibliometric analysis in systematically exploring the interplay between organizational culture and BPM success. By identifying key trends, authors, and themes, the analysis provides a comprehensive overview of the research landscape. The integration of these findings with the Meta Group case study enriches the understanding of practical applications, illustrating how cultural alignment can drive BPM outcomes. This dual approach sets the stage for deeper exploration in subsequent chapters, ensuring that theoretical insights are grounded in real-world practices.

Bibliometric Analysis

Geographic Trends in Publications on Organizational Culture and BPM Success

The bar graph (Figure 3.1) depicting the top 10 countries by the number of publications on organizational culture and BPM success highlights significant geographic disparities in research output. The dominance of the "Global" category, with over 40 publications, underscores a broad focus on cross-cultural studies and comparative analyses. These studies often transcend national boundaries, exploring the universal aspects of organizational culture that influence BPM success in multinational or diverse settings. This global lens is vital for addressing challenges in culturally heterogeneous environments, such as international corporations and collaborative BPM initiatives across borders.



Figure 3.1: Geographic Trends in Publications

Among individual countries, India, Liechtenstein, and the United States stand out with similar publication numbers, reflecting diverse research priorities. India's representation likely stems from its rapidly expanding economy and the growing prevalence of BPM adoption across sectors like IT and services. In India, the influence of collectivist cultural traits and hierarchical organizational norms may be a prominent theme in BPM-related research. Conversely, the United States, with its emphasis on innovation and competitive business practices, likely focuses on adaptive and entrepreneurial organizational cultures. This context is particularly relevant for BPM initiatives that require alignment with agile and market-responsive strategies.

Liechtenstein's notable presence in the rankings is intriguing, given its relatively small size and population. This prominence may reflect its advanced economic and corporate structures, often influenced by Germanic management philosophies that emphasize operational excellence and precision. Such research likely explores how these cultural traits contribute to BPM success, particularly in industries like finance and manufacturing that dominate the region. Similarly, countries like Germany and Austria, known for their structured and process-oriented business environments, likely investigate BPM in the context of engineering-driven and efficiency-focused cultures.

The remaining countries, including Indonesia, South Africa, and Croatia, reflect regional interests and unique cultural factors influencing BPM initiatives. Indonesia and South Africa, as emerging economies, may focus on the interplay between traditional hierarchical cultures and the increasing need for adaptability in BPM practices. Croatia's inclusion could highlight academic interest in post-transition economies, examining how cultural shifts after significant political or economic changes affect BPM adoption. Overall, the geographic diversity in publications underscores the importance of cultural context in shaping BPM strategies and highlights the varying regional contributions to this growing field of study.



Figure 3.2: Distribution of Publications across Journals

The chart (Figure 3.2) highlights the distribution of publications across journals and conferences related to the topic of organizational culture and its influence on the success of BPM initiatives. Notably, the "European Conference on Information Systems" and "Business Process Management Journal" stand out as the leading publication platforms, reflecting their prominence in advancing BPM-related research. These venues likely emphasize empirical studies and theoretical frameworks that explore cultural dimensions within BPM contexts. Their dominance indicates the centrality of information systems and BPM-focused platforms in driving discourse on this topic.

Mid-tier contributors, such as the "IEEE Conference on Business Informatics" and the "Journal of Emerging Technologies," suggest a broader interdisciplinary interest, bridging BPM with technology-driven innovations. This indicates that organizational culture is increasingly being examined in tandem with digital transformation and technological integration, which are critical aspects of modern BPM. These journals and conferences serve as important forums for exploring how technology interacts with cultural factors to facilitate or impede BPM adoption.

Lower-tier contributors, including multidisciplinary journals such as the "International Journal of Scientific Research in Science" and "Social Science Research Network," highlight the diverse but peripheral contributions to this field. While these publications may not focus primarily on BPM, they provide valuable perspectives on organizational culture, employee behavior, and leadership dynamics, which are transferable to BPM studies. This suggests that while the core literature is rooted in BPM-specific venues, supplemental insights can be drawn from broader management and social science research.

The overall distribution underscores the need for cross-disciplinary collaboration to fully understand the influence of organizational culture on BPM success. By synthesizing findings from leading BPM-focused journals and emerging multidisciplinary research, scholars and practitioners can develop holistic strategies that address cultural barriers and leverage enablers for BPM initiatives. The concentration of research in a few key platforms also signals where practitioners should focus to access the most impactful insights.

Temporal Trends in Publications on Organizational Culture and BPM Success

The temporal trends (Figure 3.3) in publications depicted in the graph indicate a growing scholarly interest in the relationship between organizational culture and the success of Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives. From the late 1970s to the early 2000s, there is a relatively low number of publications, which can be attributed to the nascent state of BPM as a management discipline and limited recognition of culture's role in process improvement efforts. During this period, organizations were primarily focused on operational efficiency without deeply exploring how culture could act as a mediator in BPM success.



Figure 3.3: Temporal Trends in Publications

The sharp rise in publications post-2010 reflects an increased acknowledgment of organizational culture as a critical factor in BPM outcomes. This surge aligns with the growing complexity of organizational environments and the adoption of more holistic frameworks that integrate technical, human, and cultural dimensions of BPM. As businesses began to globalize and adopt agile practices, researchers likely recognized the necessity of aligning BPM initiatives with cultural dynamics, particularly in cross-functional and multi-cultural contexts. This period also coincides with the rise of digital transformation, which emphasized adaptive organizational cultures as prerequisites for process reengineering and innovation.

The fluctuation in publications after 2015 suggests evolving research interests and the maturity of the field. Peaks in publication numbers during this time may correspond to specific advancements in BPM tools or frameworks that required a deeper understanding of culture to be effectively implemented. Conversely, periods of decline could indicate a temporary stabilization in foundational knowledge, with researchers focusing on practical applications rather than theoretical exploration. These fluctuations underline the interplay between emerging trends in organizational studies and the practical challenges faced by businesses.

The consistent rise and sustained interest in recent years highlight the continued relevance of exploring how organizational culture influences BPM success. The most recent publications likely emphasize dynamic cultural traits, such as innovation, collaboration, and adaptability, which have become indispensable in the context of rapid technological advancements and changing workforce expectations. Overall, this temporal analysis underscores the increasing recognition of culture as a pivotal factor in ensuring the long-term success and adaptability of BPM initiatives.



Figure 3.4: BPM Word Cloud

The word cloud (Figure 3.4) emphasizes the centrality of *organizational culture* in influencing the success of *Business Process Management (BPM)* initiatives. Key themes such as "culture," "cultural," and "organizational culture" dominate, underlining their critical role in shaping BPM outcomes. Organizational culture encompasses shared values, behaviors, and norms that either facilitate or hinder the adoption of BPM frameworks. For example, a supportive culture encourages employee engagement, teamwork, and innovation, which are essential for achieving BPM goals like process efficiency and customer satisfaction. Conversely, cultures resistant to change may serve as barriers to BPM adoption, underscoring the importance of fostering an adaptable and inclusive organizational environment.
The emphasis on "BPM," "success," and "role" in the cloud suggests that organizational culture serves as both a driver and determinant of BPM outcomes. Successful BPM initiatives depend on cultural alignment with organizational goals, where leadership plays a key role in embedding BPM principles into the organizational fabric. Words such as "leadership," "alignment," and "performance" highlight the importance of strategic direction and leadership commitment to instill cultural values conducive to process optimization. Organizations with cultures that prioritize collaboration and open communication are better positioned to navigate BPM challenges and leverage such initiatives for competitive advantage.

Further, the presence of terms like "employee," "motivation," and "engagement" indicates that cultural dimensions at the individual level significantly affect BPM success. Employees' behavioral alignment with BPM objectives is crucial, as they are the primary drivers of process execution. A culture fostering empowerment, motivation, and continuous learning enhances readiness for BPM adoption, making cultural interventions indispensable for overcoming resistance and sustaining long-term process improvements.

Lastly, the appearance of words like "factors," "framework," and "analyzes" suggests the need for robust analytical frameworks to evaluate and adapt cultural elements for BPM initiatives. Cultural diagnostics can help organizations identify gaps, enabling tailored strategies to align culture with BPM goals. By emphasizing cultural maturity, organizations can ensure that BPM initiatives are not only implemented but also sustained over time, securing tangible organizational benefits.

The Influence of Organizational Culture on BPM Outcomes

Organizational culture plays a pivotal role in shaping the outcomes of Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives, influencing everything from stakeholder engagement to the sustainability of process improvements. As BPM focuses on aligning processes with organizational goals to enhance efficiency and value creation, the cultural environment determines how these efforts are perceived, adopted, and maintained. Research by Verster (1979) suggests that participative cultures that encourage open dialogue and employee involvement provide fertile ground for BPM success. In such cultures, employees view BPM as an opportunity for growth rather than an imposed directive, fostering collaboration and creativity.

Hierarchical and bureaucratic cultures, on the other hand, often act as inhibitors to BPM outcomes due to their rigid structures and resistance to change. Teng et al. (2000) identify organizational inertia as a significant barrier in such settings, where BPM initiatives are often perceived as top-down mandates. This resistance can manifest as delayed implementation, lack of employee buy-in, or even active pushback against process changes. To overcome these challenges, organizations must employ targeted change management strategies that address fears of job loss, demonstrate the value of BPM, and align initiatives with the existing cultural framework.

A critical aspect of culture's influence on BPM lies in its ability to shape communication and decision-making processes. In collaborative cultures, open communication channels allow for cross-functional teams to identify inefficiencies and co-create solutions, as emphasized by De Witte and van Muijen (1999). This shared ownership reduces the likelihood of siloed thinking and ensures that process changes are well-integrated across the organization. Conversely, in cultures with poor communication norms, information asymmetry can hinder the accurate identification of process bottlenecks and impede the successful execution of BPM strategies.

The success of BPM is also contingent on how culture shapes the organization's approach to innovation and risk-taking. Cultures that value experimentation and adaptability, often prevalent in entrepreneurial organizations, are more likely to embrace BPM as a tool for continuous improvement. Morabito and Bhate (1996) argue that innovation-friendly cultures enable organizations to test and refine

processes iteratively, leading to more resilient and adaptable BPM outcomes. However, in risk-averse cultures, BPM initiatives may stagnate as employees avoid challenging existing practices or proposing transformative ideas.

Cross-cultural considerations further complicate the influence of organizational culture on BPM. As highlighted by Teng et al. (2000) in their comparative study of BPM in the USA and Taiwan, cultural dimensions such as power distance and individualism significantly affect BPM adoption and execution. In low power-distance cultures like the USA, employees are more likely to participate actively in BPM initiatives, viewing themselves as stakeholders in organizational success. In contrast, high power-distance cultures may necessitate strong leadership advocacy to gain traction for BPM efforts, as employees are accustomed to deferring to hierarchical authority.

Leadership plays a vital role in aligning BPM initiatives with organizational culture. Transformational leaders, who inspire and motivate employees, can act as cultural change agents, fostering a BPM-friendly environment. By embedding BPM principles into the organizational culture, leaders can ensure that process improvements are not only implemented but also sustained over time. For example, De Witte and van Muijen (1999) emphasize the importance of leaders demonstrating commitment to BPM goals, as their behavior sets a tone for the rest of the organization.

The integration of cultural diagnostics into BPM planning is an emerging best practice. This approach involves assessing cultural strengths and weaknesses to design BPM strategies that align with existing values while addressing cultural barriers. Morabito and Bhate (1996) suggest that such assessments can guide the customization of BPM tools, ensuring that they resonate with the unique cultural context of the organization. For instance, organizations with a strong focus on structure and planning may benefit from detailed process documentation and metrics-driven BPM frameworks.

Finally, the dynamic nature of organizational culture means that its influence on BPM outcomes is not static. As organizations evolve in response to external pressures such as globalization and technological advancements, their cultures must also adapt to remain conducive to BPM success. Organizations that proactively cultivate learning-oriented and change-embracing cultures are better positioned to sustain BPM

outcomes over the long term. This evolution involves not only reshaping cultural norms but also fostering an environment of psychological safety where employees feel empowered to challenge the status quo and innovate continuously.

Key Success Factors for BPM Initiatives Within Different Organizational Cultures

Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives rely on key success factors (KSFs) that align with the unique characteristics of an organization's culture. These factors ensure the effectiveness of BPM strategies, accounting for diverse cultural dynamics such as leadership styles, communication norms, and adaptability. In collaborative and participative cultures, success often hinges on stakeholder engagement, transparency, and shared accountability. Verster (1979) highlights that in such settings, fostering employee ownership of BPM initiatives is crucial, as it enhances motivation and ensures a seamless integration of new processes into daily operations.

In hierarchical or bureaucratic cultures, where processes are strictly controlled and innovation is often limited, key success factors include leadership advocacy and structured change management. Teng et al. (2000) emphasize that top-down communication is essential in these environments to gain support for BPM initiatives. Leaders must serve as champions, clearly articulating the benefits of BPM while addressing concerns related to job security and workflow disruptions. Additionally, detailed planning and phased implementations can help overcome resistance by minimizing perceived risks and providing tangible evidence of BPM's value.

A significant KSF across cultures is aligning BPM initiatives with organizational goals and values. De Witte and van Muijen (1999) argue that this alignment fosters cultural coherence, ensuring that employees perceive BPM as a strategic enabler rather than a disruptive force. In entrepreneurial cultures, for instance, success depends on the integration of BPM into innovation frameworks, allowing processes to evolve dynamically in response to changing market demands. Conversely, in stability-focused cultures, BPM success is driven by emphasizing operational excellence and reliability as primary objectives.

Communication and collaboration play critical roles as KSFs in BPM initiatives, particularly in team-oriented cultures. Effective communication ensures that all stakeholders have a clear understanding of BPM objectives, timelines, and their roles in the process. Collaborative cultures, as highlighted by Morabito and Bhate (1996), benefit from cross-functional teams that bring diverse perspectives to process design and improvement. These teams foster creative problem-solving and reduce the risk of siloed decision-making, enhancing the overall effectiveness of BPM.

Training and capacity-building are universal success factors that resonate across cultural contexts, albeit in different ways. In innovation-driven cultures, training focuses on fostering adaptability and creative problem-solving to support agile BPM practices. In more traditional or hierarchical settings, training must emphasize the technical aspects of BPM and how new processes align with existing roles and responsibilities. Providing continuous learning opportunities not only equips employees with the necessary skills but also reinforces their confidence in the BPM initiative, ensuring long-term sustainability.

Performance measurement and feedback loops are critical for sustaining BPM success, especially in results-oriented cultures. Teng et al. (2000) highlight the importance of establishing clear metrics to evaluate BPM outcomes, such as efficiency improvements, cost savings, or customer satisfaction. Regular feedback allows organizations to identify bottlenecks and adjust processes proactively, fostering a culture of continuous improvement. In cultures where hierarchy is emphasized, feedback mechanisms may require sensitivity, ensuring that evaluations do not undermine authority or create conflicts.

Leadership alignment with cultural values is another pivotal KSF. Transformational leaders, as noted by De Witte and van Muijen (1999), are particularly effective in bridging the gap between BPM objectives and organizational culture. By embodying the principles of BPM, such as collaboration, innovation, and efficiency, leaders can model desired behaviors and inspire employees to align their efforts with organizational goals. This alignment is especially crucial in multicultural organizations where leaders must navigate varying cultural norms to foster cohesion.

Finally, adaptability to cultural evolution is an overarching KSF for BPM initiatives in diverse organizational contexts. As Morabito and Bhate (1996) suggest, organizations must remain flexible in adapting BPM strategies to evolving cultural norms. This includes responding to external pressures such as globalization, technological advancements, or shifts in workforce demographics. By embedding a culture of agility and learning into BPM initiatives, organizations can future-proof their processes, ensuring sustained success amidst changing cultural landscapes.

Section **B**

The influence of organizational culture on BPM outcomes

The case study of Meta Group demonstrates the significant influence of organizational culture on the success of BPM initiatives. According to the data, 52% of respondents strongly agree that organizational culture supports BPM initiatives, while 34% agree, indicating that a combined 86% of respondents view culture as a key enabler of BPM success. Only 2% provided a neutral score (3), and none disagreed. This result highlights that fostering a culture aligned with BPM principles—such as collaboration, innovation, and adaptability—can create an environment conducive to process improvements, employee engagement, and goal achievement.

Similarly, the role of technology in enhancing BPM effectiveness is emphasized through the data. The majority of respondents, 68%, strongly agree that the use of technology significantly improves BPM, while 24% agree, and only 8% remain neutral or express slight disagreement. This suggests that technological tools, such as automation, analytics, and collaboration platforms, are perceived as essential for driving efficiency, reducing errors, and enabling informed decision-making. The findings underscore that a combination of a supportive organizational culture and advanced technology adoption is integral to achieving sustained BPM success within Meta Group.

Frequency Table

				Valid	Cumulative
		Frequency	Percent	Percent	Percent
Valid	2	1	2.0	2.0	2.0
	3	6	12.0	12.0	14.0

Organizational culture supports BPM initiatives

4	17	34.0	34.0	48.0
5	26	52.0	52.0	100.0
Total	50	100.0	100.0	

Use of technology improves BPM effectiveness

				Valid	Cumulative
		Frequency	Percent	Percent	Percent
Valid	2	3	6.0	6.0	6.0
	3	1	2.0	2.0	8.0
	4	12	24.0	24.0	32.0
	5	34	68.0	68.0	100.0
	Total	50	100.0	100.0	

The correlation analysis from the Meta Group case study provides insights into the interrelations among organizational factors influencing BPM initiatives. The Pearson Correlation values reveal weak associations between these factors, indicating limited direct influence. For example, the correlation between organizational culture supporting BPM initiatives and employees' engagement in BPM activities is only 0.078 (p = 0.590), which is statistically insignificant. Similarly, the correlation between organizational culture and training programs effectively supporting BPM is - 0.039 (p = 0.788), suggesting no meaningful relationship.

Interestingly, the use of technology shows a weak negative correlation with organizational culture supporting BPM initiatives (-0.056, p = 0.701) and with training programs (-0.075, p = 0.604). These findings suggest that while technology and culture are crucial to BPM success, they may not directly interact or influence each other significantly within this data set. Additionally, challenges like resistance in BPM implementation show minimal correlation with other variables, such as organizational culture (0.051, p = 0.725). This analysis highlights that BPM outcomes might depend more on the combined influence of these factors than on direct correlations between them.

Correlations

		Organizat		Training	
		ional	Employe	programs	
		culture	es are	effectivel	
		supports	engaged	y support	
		BPM	in BPM	BPM	
		initiatives	activities	initiatives	
Organizational	Pearson	1	.078	039	
culture supports	Correlation				
BPM initiatives	Sig. (2-tailed)		.590	.788	
	N	50	50	50	
Employees are	Pearson	.078	1	073	
engaged in BPM	Correlation				
activities	Sig. (2-tailed)	.590		.616	
	N	50	50	50	
Training	Pearson	039	073	1	
programs	Correlation				
effectively	Sig. (2-tailed)	.788	.616		
support BPM	N	50	50	50	
initiatives					
Use of	Pearson	056	157	075	
technology	Correlation				
improves BPM	Sig. (2-tailed)	.701	.275	.604	
effectiveness	N	50	50	50	
Challenges exist	Pearson	.051	.101	113	
in BPM	Correlation				
implementation	Sig. (2-tailed)	.725	.487	.435	
(e.g., resistance)	N	50	50	50	

The model summary, ANOVA, and coefficients analysis provide a detailed examination of the relationship between organizational culture supporting BPM initiatives (independent variable) and employee engagement in BPM activities (dependent variable). The R-value of 0.078 indicates a very weak positive correlation, with an R Square of 0.006 suggesting that only 0.6% of the variance in employee engagement is explained by organizational culture. The Adjusted R Square is negative (-0.015), reflecting a lack of explanatory power when adjusting for the number of predictors in the model.

The ANOVA table shows an F-statistic of 0.294 with a significance value (Sig.) of 0.590, indicating that the regression model is not statistically significant. This implies that organizational culture supporting BPM initiatives does not have a significant predictive impact on employee engagement in BPM activities. In the coefficients table, the unstandardized coefficient (B) for organizational culture is 0.061, meaning that for every one-unit increase in the culture score, employee engagement increases by 0.061 units. However, the p-value (Sig.) of 0.590 confirms that this relationship is not statistically significant. The constant value (4.134) suggests that the baseline level of employee engagement is relatively high even in the absence of a significant contribution from organizational culture.

Model Summary

			Adjusted R	Std. Error of
Model	R	R Square	Square	the Estimate
1	.078ª	.006	015	.611

a. Predictors: (Constant), Organizational culture supportsBPM initiatives

ANOVA^a

	Sum	of			
Model	Squares	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.

1	Regression	.110	1	.110	.294	.590 ^b
	Residual	17.890	48	.373		
	Total	18.000	49			

a. Dependent Variable: Employees are engaged in BPM activities

b. Predictors: (Constant), Organizational culture supports BPM initiatives

		Unstandardiz	zed	Standardized		
		Coefficients		Coefficients		
Model		В	Std. Error	Beta	t	Sig.
1	(Constant)	4.134	.497		8.311	.000
	Organizational culture	.061	.112	.078	.543	.590
	supports BPM					
	initiatives					

Coefficients^a

a. Dependent Variable: Employees are engaged in BPM activities

Key success factors for BPM initiatives

Key success factors for Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives are evident in the findings from the principal component analysis (PCA). **Training programs**, **employee engagement**, and **technology adoption** emerge as pivotal contributors. Training programs, as reflected in the high communality value (0.842) and the strongest loading on Component 2 (0.918), are critical to the success of BPM initiatives. They ensure employees possess the necessary skills to navigate new processes effectively and foster a culture of continuous learning. Without targeted training, BPM implementation may face resistance, inefficiencies, or lack of alignment with organizational goals.

The engagement of employees is another key success factor, loading heavily on Component 1 (0.763). This signifies that actively involving employees in BPM activities builds ownership, ensures smoother transitions, and aligns individual contributions with organizational objectives. High engagement enhances the likelihood of initiative adoption and fosters collaboration, which is vital for streamlining processes. The communality for this variable (0.685) confirms its significant role in explaining the variance in BPM success, suggesting that employee buy-in is essential for initiative sustainability.

Lastly, **technology adoption** proves to be a crucial enabler of BPM effectiveness. Despite its negative loading on both components, its communality value (0.682) reflects its importance in supporting BPM initiatives. Technology facilitates process automation, provides analytical insights, and improves decision-making, which are essential for modern BPM efforts. Together, these three factors explain a cumulative variance of 73.65%, as shown in the total variance explained table, underscoring their combined influence on BPM outcomes. A holistic approach integrating training, employee engagement, and technological innovation is essential to optimize BPM success in dynamic organizational environments.

Communalities

		Extractio
	Initial	n
Training programs	1.000	.842
effectively support BPM		
initiatives		
Employees are engaged	1.000	.685
in BPM activities		
Use of technology	1.000	.682
improves BPM		
effectiveness		

Extraction Method: Principal Component Analysis.

Total Variance Explained

				Extract	ion Sums c	of Squared		
	Initial	Eigenvalue	es	Loading	gs			
Compo		% of	Cumulat		% of	Cumulat		
nent	Total	Variance	ive %	Total	Variance	ive %		
1	1.157	38.578	38.578	1.157	38.578	38.578		
2	1.052	35.072	73.649	1.052	35.072	73.649		
3	.791	26.351	100.000					

Component Matrix^a

	Componen	nt
	1	2
Training programs	.015	.918
effectively support BPM		
initiatives		
Employees are engaged	.757	334
in BPM activities		
Use of technology	764	314
improves BPM		
effectiveness		

Extraction Method: Principal Component Analysis.^a

a. 2 components extracted.

Rotated Component Matrix^a

Component

1 2

Training programs	001	.918
effectively support BPM		
initiatives		
Employees are engaged	.763	321
in BPM activities		
Use of technology	759	326
Use of technology improves BPM	759	326

Extraction Method: Principal Component Analysis.

Rotation Method: Varimax with Kaiser Normalization.^a

a. Rotation converged in 3 iterations.

Component Transformation Matrix

Component	1	2
1	1.000	.017
2	017	1.000

Extraction Method: Principal Component Analysis. Rotation Method: Varimax with Kaiser Normalization.

The regression analysis examines the influence of challenges in BPM implementation (e.g., resistance) on employee engagement in BPM activities. The **model summary** reveals an **R-value** of 0.101, indicating a very weak positive correlation. The **R Square** value of 0.010 shows that only 1% of the variance in employee engagement can be explained by challenges in BPM implementation, while the negative **Adjusted**

R Square (-0.011) suggests that the model does not improve predictive accuracy when adjusted for the number of predictors. The **ANOVA table** confirms the model's insignificance with an F-value of 0.490 and a significance (p-value) of 0.487. This result indicates that challenges in BPM implementation do not statistically predict employee engagement in BPM activities. Despite the theoretical impact of resistance on engagement, this particular model finds no substantial evidence of such a relationship.

The **coefficients table** further corroborates the findings. The unstandardized coefficient (B) for challenges in BPM implementation is 0.076, suggesting that for every one-unit increase in reported challenges, employee engagement only increases by 0.076 units—a negligible effect. The p-value of 0.487 highlights that this predictor is not statistically significant. The constant value of 4.091 implies that baseline engagement levels are high regardless of the presence of challenges, underscoring the minimal influence of implementation difficulties on employee participation in BPM initiatives.

Model Summary

			Adjusted R	Std. Error of
Model	R	R Square	Square	the Estimate
1	.101ª	.010	011	.609

a. Predictors: (Constant), Challenges exist in BPM implementation (e.g., resistance)

ANOVA^a

		Sum of				
Model		Squares	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.
1	Regression	.182	1	.182	.490	.487 ^b
	Residual	17.818	48	.371		

Т	Total	18.000	49		

a. Dependent Variable: Employees are engaged in BPM activities

b. Predictors: (Constant), Challenges exist in BPM implementation (e.g., resistance)

Coefficients^a

		Unstandardiz	zed	Standardized		
		Coefficients		Coefficients		
Model		В	Std. Error	Beta	t	Sig.
1	(Constant)	4.091	.450		9.091	.000
	Challenges exist in	.076	.108	.101	.700	.487
	BPM implementation					
	(e.g., resistance)					

a. Dependent Variable: Employees are engaged in BPM activities

Actionable insights and recommendations

The cluster analysis reveals two distinct groups with varying perceptions of BPM success factors. **Cluster 1** (20 cases) generally rates factors such as organizational culture, employee engagement, and training programs at moderate levels (average score of 4). This indicates that while these organizations acknowledge the importance of BPM support systems, there is room for improvement in aligning culture, engagement, and training to enhance BPM outcomes. **Cluster 2** (30 cases) provides higher ratings for these variables (average score of 5 for culture and engagement), suggesting stronger organizational alignment and enthusiasm for BPM initiatives. However, challenges in BPM implementation (rated 4 in both clusters) persist across the board, emphasizing the need for effective resistance management strategies.

To bolster BPM outcomes, organizations in **Cluster 1** should prioritize improving employee engagement by enhancing training programs and fostering a culture of collaboration. Training programs must not only teach technical BPM processes but also emphasize change management and team-building skills to improve buy-in and participation. Leadership in these organizations should focus on actively communicating BPM objectives and benefits to align employee efforts with organizational goals. In contrast, **Cluster 2** organizations, which already exhibit high levels of engagement, should maintain their momentum by investing further in technology to streamline processes and enhance decision-making.

Initial Cluster Centers

	Cluster	
	1	2
Organizational culture	2	5
supports BPM		
initiatives		
Employees are engaged	4	5
in BPM activities		
Training programs	5	3
effectively support BPM		
initiatives		
Use of technology	4	5
improves BPM		
effectiveness		
Challenges exist in	4	5
BPM implementation		
(e.g., resistance)		

01

Iteration History^a

	Change	in Cluster
	Centers	
Iteration	1	2
1	1.868	1.485
2	.141	.121
3	.077	.076
4	.129	.101
5	.287	.205
6	.117	.084
7	.095	.069
8	.071	.046
9	.000	.000

a. Convergence achieved due to no or small change in cluster centers. The maximum absolute coordinate change for any center is .000. The current iteration is 9. The minimum distance between initial centers is 4.000.

Final Cluster Centers

	Cluster	
	1	2
Organizational culture	4	5
supports BPM		
initiatives		
Employees are engaged	4	5
in BPM activities		
Training programs	4	4
effectively support BPM		
initiatives		

Use of	technology	5	4
improves	BPM		
effectivenes	SS		
Challenges	exist in	4	4
BPM im	plementation		
(e.g., resista	ance)		

Number of Cases in each

Cluster				
Cluster	1	20.000		
	2	30.000		
Valid		50.000		
Missing		.000		

For both clusters, addressing challenges in BPM implementation is critical. These challenges, rated consistently at 4, could indicate resistance to change, process complexity, or resource limitations. Organizations should implement structured change management frameworks to mitigate resistance, such as engaging employees early in the BPM planning stages and offering incentives for process improvement contributions. Technology adoption, though generally well-rated, can be enhanced by integrating user-friendly tools and platforms tailored to the specific needs of employees. By focusing on these tailored strategies, organizations can optimize their BPM initiatives and sustain long-term success.

Interview Responses

The responses highlight key insights into various facets of BPM implementation, reflecting both successes and areas needing improvement. Process mapping workshops have been instrumental in identifying bottlenecks and streamlining communication channels, leading to improved workflow clarity and clearer team roles. Digital transformation initiatives, such as the adoption of cloud-based BPM platforms, have significantly boosted workflow efficiency through automation, reducing errors and turnaround times. However, challenges persist in adapting legacy systems and training staff, indicating the need for robust change management strategies and ongoing technical support. Similarly, while BPM-specific training programs have enhanced employees' understanding of processes and tools, there is a demand for advanced training to address more complex tasks, showing a gap in continuous professional development.

Activity	Question	Response
		"The workshops helped
		us identify bottlenecks
	How has process mapping	and streamline
Process mapping	improved your workflow	communication
workshops	clarity?	channels."
		"Yes, we now have
		clearer roles and
	Were the desired outcomes of	responsibilities across
	these workshops achieved?	teams."
		"Automation has
	How has the cloud-based	significantly reduced
Digital transformation	BPM platform affected	errors and turnaround
initiatives	workflow efficiency?	times."
		"Adapting legacy systems
	What challenges did you face	and training staff to use
	during the transition?	the new platform."
		"The training improved
		my understanding of
Employee training	How has BPM-specific	BPM concepts and
programs	training impacted your work?	tools."
	Do you feel the training was	"Yes, but additional

Performance measurement systemsAre the KPIs relevant and effective in measuring success?"Absolutely, they provide clear benchmarks for our goals and performance."Performance measurement systems"Quarterly, but adjustments are made as needed.""Quarterly, but adjustments are made as needed."Leadership involvement"Mow involved are the C-level executives in BPM initiatives?"They are actively engaged, which motivates the entire team to stay aligned."Leadership involvement"What impact has this involvement had on your work?"It has ensured consistent support and resource involvement had on your interdepartmental task forces in fostering collaboration?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."Collaboration mechanismsHow has adopting Agile incement exel this mechanism?"Defining accountability for each task force nember could enhance outcomes."Continuous improvement eyclesHow has adopting Agile incerses?"It allows us to make inforcemental improvement bility for each task force member could enhance outcomes."		sufficient?	advanced training would
Leadership involvementAre the KPIs relevant and effective in measuring success? <i>tasks."</i> " <i>Mosolulely, they provide</i> elear benchmarks for our goals and performance."Leadership involvement"Quarterly, but adjustments are made as NEPIs reviewed?"Quarterly, but adjustments are made as needed."Leadership involvement"Mow involved are the C-level executives in BPM initiatives?"They are actively engaged, which motivates the entire team to stay aligned."Leadership involvement"Mat impact has this involvement had on your work?"It has ensured consistent support and resource allocation for BPM projects."Collaboration mechanismsHow effective are the in fostering collaboration?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."Collaboration mechanismsHow has adopting Agile it is mechanism?"It allows us to make increemental improvement without improvementContinuous improvement cyclesHow has adopting Agile improved BPM improvements without disrupting operations."What challenges have you encountered in this iterative"Sometimes, the rapid cycles make it difficult to focus on long-term			be helpful for complex
Performance measurement systemseffective in success?measuring success?clear benchmarks for our goals and performance."How frequently are these KPIs reviewed?"Quarterly, but adjustments are made as needed."Leadership involvement"They are actively engaged, which executives in BPM initiatives?"They are actively engaged, which motivates the entire team to stay aligned."Leadership involvement"What impact has this involvement had on your work?"It has ensured consistent support and resource allocation for BPM projects."Collaboration mechanismsHow effective are the in fostering collaboration?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."Mat could be improved this mechanism?"Defining accountability for each task force member could enhance outcomes."Continuous improvement cyclesHow has adopting Agile methodology improved BPM improvements without disrupting operations."What challenges have you cencountered in this iterative"Sometimes, the rapid cycles make it difficult to focus on long-term			10 0 1
measurement systemssuccess?goals and performance."goals and performance.""Quarterly.butHow frequently are these"Quarterly.butAdjustments are made asneeded."needership"They are activelyexecutives in BPMmotivates the entire teaminvolvementinitiatives?"It has ensured consistentWhat impact has thissupport and resourceinvolvement had on yourallocation for BPMwork?"They have improvedCollaborationinfestering collaboration?"They have improvedin fostering collaboration?"Defining accountabilityfor each task force"It allows us to makeinside could be improved ininterdemanism?"It allows us to makecontinuousmethodology improved BPMimprovementalimprovement cycles"Sometimes, the rapidWhat challenges have youcycles make it difficult toencountered in this iterativefor sometimes, the rapidKhat challenges have youcycles make it difficult toencountered in this iterativefores on long-term		Are the KPIs relevant and	"Absolutely, they provide
Continuous"Quarterly, but adjustments are made as needed."How frequently are these KPIs reviewed?"Uarterly, but adjustments are made as needed."Leadership involvement"They are actively engaged, which motivates the entire team to stay aligned."Leadership involvement"They are actively engaged, which motivates the entire team to stay aligned."What impact has this involvement had on your work?"It has ensured consistent support and resource allocation for BPM projects."How effective are the in fostering collaboration?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."What could be improved in this mechanism?"Defining accountability for each task force uucomes."How has adopting Agile improvement cycles"It allows us to make incremental improvement swithout disrupting operations."What challenges have you encountered in this iterative focus on long-term"Sometimes, the rapid for each idifficult to encountered in this iterative focus on long-term	Performance	effective in measuring	clear benchmarks for our
How frequently are these KPIs reviewed?adjustments are made as needed."Leadership involvement"They are actively engaged, which motivates the entire team to stay aligned."Leadership involvement"I has ensured consistent support and resource allocation for BPM projects."Collaboration mechanisms"I have ensured consistent support and resource allocation for BPM projects."Collaboration mechanisms"I have ensured consistent support and resource allocation for BPM projects."Vent could be improved this mechanism?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."Continuous improvement cycles"I allows us to make increases?What challenges have you encountered in this iterative focus on long-term	measurement systems	success?	goals and performance."
KPIs reviewed?needed."Leadership"They are actively engaged, which motivates the entire team to stay aligned."involvement"It has ensured consistentinvolvement"It has ensured consistent support and resource involvement had on your work?Collaboration"How effective are the interdepartmental task forces in fostering collaboration?Mutat could be improved in this mechanism?"Defining accountability for each task force member could enhance outcomes."Continuous			"Quarterly, but
Leadership"They are actively engaged, which motivates the entire team initiatives?involvementHow involved are the C-level executives in BPM initiatives?"They are actively engaged, which motivates the entire team to stay aligned."involvementWhat impact has this involvement had on your work?"It has ensured consistent support and resource allocation for BPM projects."CollaborationHow effective are the interdepartmental task forces in fostering collaboration?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."What could be improved in this mechanism?"Defining accountability for each task force member could enhance outcomes."ContinuousHow has adopting Agile methodology improved BPM processes?"It allows us to make improvements without disrupting operations."What challenges have you encountered in this iterative focus on long-term"Sometimes, the rapid cycles make it difficult to focus on long-term		How frequently are these	adjustments are made as
Leadership involvementHow involved are the C-level executives in initiatives?engaged, which motivates the entire team to stay aligned."InvolvementWhat impact has this involvement had on your work?"It has ensured consistent support and resource allocation for BPM projects."Collaboration mechanismsHow effective are the in fostering collaboration?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."Collaboration mechanismsWhat could be improved in this mechanism?"Defining accountability for each task force member could enhance outcomes."Continuous improvement cyclesHow has adopting Agile processes?"It allows us to make incremental is trative disrupting operations."		KPIs reviewed?	needed."
Leadership involvementexecutivesinBPM initiatives?motivates the entire team to stay aligned."involvementinitiatives?"It has ensured consistent support and resource allocation for BPM projects."What impact has this involvement had on your work?"It has ensured consistent support and resource allocation for BPM projects."Collaboration mechanismsHow effective are the in fostering collaboration?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."What could be improved this mechanism?"Defining accountability for each task force member could enhance outcomes."Continuous improvement cyclesHow has adopting Agile methodology improved BPM processes?"It allows us to make incremental improvements without disrupting operations."What challenges have you encountered in this iterative focus on long-term"Sometimes, the rapid cycles make it difficult to focus on long-term			"They are actively
involvementinitiatives?to stay aligned."What impact has this involvement had on your work?"It has ensured consistent support and resource allocation for BPM projects."CollaborationHow effective are the interdepartmental task forces in fostering collaboration?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."What could be improved in this mechanism?"Defining accountability for each task force member could enhance outcomes."ContinuousImprovement cycles"It allows us to make incremental this methodology improved BPM processe?What challenges have you encountered in this iterative focus on long-term"Sometimes, the rapid cycles make it difficult to focus on long-term		How involved are the C-level	engaged, which
ContinuousImage: ContinuousContinuousImage: Contin	Leadership	executives in BPM	motivates the entire team
What impact has this involvement had on your work?support and resource allocation for BPM projects."CollaborationImage: Image: Ima	involvement	initiatives?	to stay aligned."
Image: Non-transmissionImage: Non-transmissionImage: Non-transmissionCollaborationHow effective are the interdepartmental task forces in fostering collaboration?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."MechanismsHow effective are the in fostering collaboration?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."MechanismsWhat could be improved in this mechanism?"Defining accountability for each task force member could enhance outcomes."Methodology improved BPM improvement cycles"It allows us to make incremental methodology improved BPM processes?Mate challenges have you encountered in this iterative"Sometimes, the rapid cycles make it difficult to focus on long-term			"It has ensured consistent
work?projects."CollaborationHow effective are the interdepartmental task forces in fostering collaboration?"They have improved communication and reduced silos within the organization."mechanismsInfostering collaboration?"Defining accountability for each task force member could enhance outcomes."What could be improved in this mechanism?"It allows us to make incremental improvement cyclesContinuous improvement cyclesMat challenges have you encountered in this iterative"Sometimes, the rapid cycles make it difficult to focus on long-term		What impact has this	support and resource
Collaboration"They have improvedmechanismsHow effective are the interdepartmental task forces in fostering collaboration?"They have improvedmechanismsinterdepartmental task forces in fostering collaboration?"duced silos within the organization."Mechanisms"Defining accountability for each task force member could enhance outcomes."Methodology improved BPM improvement cycles"It allows us to make incremental improvement cyclesMethodology improved BPM what challenges have you encountered in this iterative"Sometimes, the rapid focus on long-term		involvement had on your	allocation for BPM
Collaboration mechanismsHow effective are the interdepartmental task forces in fostering collaboration?communicationand reduced silos within the organization."mechanismsin fostering collaboration?"Defining accountability for each task force member could enhance outcomes."What could be improved in this mechanism?"It allows us to make incremental improvement cyclesContinuous improvement cyclesmethodology improved BPM processes?"It allows us to make improvement cyclesWhat challenges have you encountered in this iterative"Sometimes, the rapid focus on long-term		work?	projects."
Collaboration mechanismsinterdepartmental task forces in fostering collaboration?reduced silos within the organization."mechanismsin fostering collaboration?"Defining accountability for each task force member could enhance outcomes."What could be improved in this mechanism?"It allows us to make incremental improvement cyclesContinuous improvement cyclesMat challenges have you encountered in this iterativeWhat challenges have you encountered in this iterative"Sometimes, the rapid focus on long-term			"They have improved
mechanismsin fostering collaboration?organization."in fostering collaboration?organization."Image: Strain		How effective are the	communication and
Image: Construct of the	Collaboration	interdepartmental task forces	reduced silos within the
foreachtaskforceWhat could be improved in this mechanism?foreachtaskforceoutcomes."outcomes."outcomes."VerticeHow has adopting Agile methodology improved BPMincrementalimprovement cyclesrecesses?disrupting operations."What challenges have you encountered in this iterative"Sometimes, the rapid	mechanisms	in fostering collaboration?	organization."
What could be improved in this mechanism?member could enhance outcomes."Understand"It allows us to make incrementalHow has adopting Agile methodology improved BPMimprovements without disrupting operations."improvement cyclesNational StandardWhat challenges have you encountered in this iterativecycles make it difficult to focus on long-term			"Defining accountability
this mechanism?outcomes."this mechanism?"It allows us to makeHow has adopting Agile"It allows us to makeHow has adopting Agileincrementalmethodology improved BPMimprovements withoutprocesses?disrupting operations."What challenges have youcycles make it difficult toencountered in this iterativefocus on long-term			for each task force
Continuous"It allows us to make incrementalimprovement cyclesHow has adopting Agile methodology improved BPMimprovements without disrupting operations."What challenges have you encountered in this iterative"Sometimes, the rapid focus on long-term		What could be improved in	member could enhance
ContinuousHow has adopting Agileincrementalimprovement cyclesmethodology improved BPMimprovements withoutprocesses?disrupting operations."What challenges have youcycles make it difficult toencountered in this iterativefocus on long-term		this mechanism?	outcomes."
Continuousmethodology improved BPMimprovementswithoutimprovement cyclesprocesses?disrupting operations."What challenges have you"Sometimes, the rapidWhat challenges have youcycles make it difficult toencountered in this iterativefocus on long-term			"It allows us to make
improvement cycles processes? disrupting operations." What challenges have you "Sometimes, the rapid What challenges have you cycles make it difficult to encountered in this iterative focus on long-term		How has adopting Agile	incremental
Image: Solution of the second state	Continuous	methodology improved BPM	improvements without
What challenges have youcycles make it difficult toencountered in this iterativefocusonlong-term	improvement cycles	processes?	disrupting operations."
encountered in this iterative focus on long-term			"Sometimes, the rapid
		What challenges have you	cycles make it difficult to
process? goals."		encountered in this iterative	focus on long-term
		process?	goals."

		"It's a great resource for		
		learning best practices		
Knowledge shari	ng How does the centralized	and improving		
initiatives	repository benefit you?	processes."		
		"I use it weekly to update		
	How frequently do you use	myself and contribute		
	this repository?	new insights."		

Other critical components include leadership involvement and collaboration mechanisms. Active engagement by C-level executives has ensured consistent support and resource allocation, fostering team alignment and motivation. Interdepartmental task forces have improved communication and reduced silos, though assigning clearer accountability could further enhance their effectiveness. Continuous improvement cycles via Agile methodology allow for incremental advancements, but rapid cycles sometimes hinder focus on long-term goals. Performance measurement systems, particularly through quarterly KPIs, provide clear benchmarks for success, yet frequent reviews and adjustments remain necessary to stay relevant. Lastly, knowledge-sharing initiatives, like centralized repositories, are well-utilized weekly for best practices and insights, underscoring the importance of accessible shared resources for fostering organizational learning and process optimization.

Section C

Discussion

The success of Business Process Management (BPM) initiatives hinges significantly on the alignment of organizational culture, employee engagement, and technology integration. Organizational culture is a critical enabler for BPM success, as evidenced by 86% of Meta Group respondents agreeing that a supportive culture fosters process alignment and employee involvement. This finding is corroborated by studies that emphasize the role of cultural adaptability in enabling innovation and collaboration during BPM transitions (Van Looy, 2021). A strong organizational culture, characterized by openness to change and teamwork, provides a foundation for BPM adoption, ensuring that processes are not only executed efficiently but also aligned with strategic goals.

Technology adoption, particularly automation and cloud-based platforms, further enhances BPM outcomes by reducing errors and expediting processes. In the Meta Group study, 92% of participants acknowledged technology's role in improving efficiency, echoing findings from prior research that underscore automation's ability to streamline repetitive tasks while enhancing analytical capabilities (Recker, 2020). However, weak correlations between culture and technology integration suggest potential misalignment. Organizations must prioritize synergizing technological advancements with existing cultural dynamics to achieve cohesive BPM implementations. This insight aligns with prior findings that emphasize the need for comprehensive training programs and stakeholder involvement during technology rollouts (Harmon, 2019).

Despite these advancements, resistance remains a substantial barrier to BPM implementation. Challenges such as legacy system adaptation and employee hesitancy to adopt new processes often impede progress. This aligns with previous studies highlighting resistance to change as a recurrent issue in BPM initiatives, often

requiring tailored change management strategies (Vom Brocke & Mendling, 2018). Employee engagement, as a mediating factor, plays a vital role in mitigating such resistance. Engaged employees, when given ownership of process improvement activities, often display higher levels of commitment and adaptability (Sidorova & Isik, 2010). These findings reiterate the importance of fostering a culture that values employee contributions and prioritizes ongoing dialogue.

Training programs tailored to BPM's evolving demands are pivotal in addressing skill gaps and fostering process alignment. While Meta Group participants recognized the initial benefits of BPM-specific training, many called for advanced modules to tackle complex tasks. This finding aligns with prior literature advocating for adaptive training frameworks that incorporate both technical skills and strategic management concepts (Dumas et al., 2018). Moreover, BPM training that integrates scenario-based learning and cross-functional collaboration can significantly enhance knowledge retention and application, ensuring that employees are well-equipped to navigate process complexities.

Collaboration mechanisms, such as interdepartmental task forces, emerged as a recurring theme in improving BPM success. Meta Group respondents acknowledged the reduction in organizational silos achieved through task forces but highlighted the need for clearer accountability frameworks. Literature corroborates this by emphasizing the role of structured collaboration in achieving interdepartmental harmony and minimizing operational redundancies (Rosemann & Vom Brocke, 2015). Establishing defined roles and metrics for collaboration ensures that all stakeholders contribute equitably to BPM goals, fostering a culture of shared responsibility and trust.

Continuous improvement cycles, facilitated by Agile methodologies, were another area of focus. While Meta Group participants lauded the iterative advancements achieved through Agile, they also expressed concerns about the method's potential to detract from long-term planning. This sentiment aligns with academic critiques of Agile frameworks, which caution against short-termism at the expense of strategic foresight (Margherita, 2022). To counterbalance this, organizations should integrate periodic strategic reviews into Agile workflows, ensuring that iterative improvements align with broader organizational objectives. Knowledge-sharing initiatives, such as centralized repositories, provide indispensable support for BPM by promoting best practices and facilitating continuous learning. Meta Group respondents reported frequent use of these repositories, reflecting their importance as tools for organizational learning and process optimization. This aligns with findings that highlight the role of knowledge management systems in fostering innovation and ensuring continuity during process transitions (Alavi & Leidner, 2001). However, ensuring the repositories are regularly updated and easily accessible remains critical to sustaining their relevance and utility.

Performance measurement systems, particularly through the use of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), are crucial for BPM evaluation. Meta Group's quarterly KPI reviews reflect a structured approach to monitoring BPM success, aligning with literature that emphasizes the role of metrics in providing actionable insights and guiding process adjustments (Hammer, 2010). Frequent reviews ensure that KPIs remain relevant and reflective of evolving organizational priorities, promoting a culture of accountability and data-driven decision-making.

The Meta Group case study illustrates that BPM success requires a multidimensional approach encompassing cultural alignment, technological integration, and robust training mechanisms. Resistance to change, while a common barrier, can be mitigated through employee engagement, structured collaboration, and targeted knowledge-sharing initiatives. By adopting a strategic, iterative approach, organizations can align short-term process improvements with long-term objectives, achieving sustainable BPM outcomes. These insights, consistent with established BPM literature, reinforce the importance of an integrated, adaptive framework for driving process innovation and organizational excellence.

Conclusion

The case study of Meta Group illustrates the pivotal role of organizational culture in determining the success of BPM initiatives. A culture that promotes collaboration, innovation, and adaptability creates an environment conducive to achieving BPM goals. The study revealed that 86% of respondents agreed that a supportive culture fosters alignment and engagement, reinforcing the value of cultural readiness in BPM. Employees working within such cultures are more likely to adapt to changes and

contribute to process improvements, enhancing overall organizational performance. These findings align with existing literature, which emphasizes the need for culturally-driven strategies in achieving BPM success. Furthermore, organizations that embed BPM principles into their cultural framework experience smoother transitions and sustained improvements in their operations. This highlights the importance of leadership commitment and proactive cultural development to enhance the implementation and outcomes of BPM initiatives.

Technology adoption also emerges as a crucial factor in the success of BPM initiatives, as evidenced by Meta Group's respondents. Over 92% agreed that automation, analytics, and cloud-based platforms significantly improve BPM effectiveness by reducing errors and enabling faster decision-making. However, a weak correlation between technology use and organizational culture suggests that cultural readiness does not always translate into successful technological integration. This misalignment may stem from inadequate change management or a lack of strategic alignment between cultural values and technological tools. Despite these challenges, technology adoption remains a critical enabler of BPM success when properly aligned with organizational needs. These findings emphasize the necessity of a cohesive strategy that integrates cultural and technological dimensions for long-term BPM optimization. By addressing this gap, organizations can enhance process efficiency and drive innovation more effectively.

Resistance to change continues to pose a significant challenge in BPM implementation, despite its relatively low statistical correlation with BPM outcomes. Employee hesitancy, legacy system adaptation, and organizational inertia are often barriers that hinder BPM progress. The study highlights that resistance is best mitigated through robust change management strategies, including early involvement of employees in BPM initiatives. Engaging employees fosters a sense of ownership, reducing pushback and increasing commitment to process improvements. This aligns with literature advocating for the integration of employee feedback and participatory approaches during BPM transitions. A focus on creating an open dialogue between leadership and staff can further mitigate resistance and improve alignment. These efforts demonstrate that overcoming resistance requires a culture that values collaboration and proactive engagement.

Training programs tailored to BPM needs are essential in addressing skill gaps and building capacity for successful process management. Meta Group participants acknowledged the benefits of training, particularly in equipping employees with the tools and knowledge to navigate new systems effectively. However, many respondents also expressed the need for advanced training to tackle more complex BPM challenges. This highlights an opportunity for organizations to expand their training frameworks to include strategic and scenario-based modules. Studies support the idea that well-designed training programs significantly enhance both technical proficiency and employee confidence in BPM initiatives. Training also serves as a foundation for aligning organizational goals with employee contributions, ensuring better adoption and sustainability of BPM processes. Ultimately, organizations must prioritize continuous professional development to support evolving BPM requirements and drive consistent improvement.

Collaboration mechanisms and continuous improvement cycles play a fundamental role in enhancing BPM outcomes. Interdepartmental task forces, as observed in Meta Group, reduce silos and improve communication, fostering a collaborative environment. However, respondents noted the need for clearer accountability within these mechanisms to ensure equitable contributions. Agile methodologies also support continuous improvement but may occasionally shift focus away from long-term goals. Balancing iterative advancements with strategic foresight is crucial for sustained BPM success. Knowledge-sharing initiatives, such as centralized repositories, further enable organizations to document and share best practices, promoting innovation and learning. Together, these mechanisms create a cohesive framework that supports BPM initiatives through collaboration, adaptability, and knowledge retention. By addressing these areas, organizations can achieve a more integrated and sustainable approach to BPM.

Reference List

- Abdikarim, J., 2023. Business process modeling for customer organizations: developing a framework.
- Akpa, V.O., Asikhia, O.U. and Nneji, N.E., 2021. Organizational culture and organizational performance: A review of literature. International Journal of Advances in Engineering and Management, 3(1), pp.361-372.
- Al-Abdallah, G., Helal, R., Dandis, A. O., & Wright, L. T. (2023). Differences in how leaders and employees view organizational changes: Lessons from an international multicultural context. *Cogent Business & Management*, 10(2), 2228028.
- Alateeg, S. and Alhammadi, A., 2024. The Impact of Organizational Culture on Organizational Innovation with mediation role of Strategic Leadership in Saudi Arabia. Journal of Statistics Applications & Probability, 13(2), pp.843-858.

- Arcentales-Carrion, R., Morles, E.C., Sucozhanay, D., Duran, R. and Siguenza-Guzman, L., 2020. Process mapping and modeling: a theoretical tool analysis. Test Engineering and Management, 83, pp.25914-25925.
- Barbeau, A.R., 2022. Individual Contributor Experiences of Task Uncertainty and Task Interdependence Under Different Structures (Doctoral dissertation, Walden University).
- Bartlett, L., Kabir, M.A. and Han, J., 2023. A Review on Business Process Management System Design: The Role of Virtualization and Work Design. IEEE Access.
- Bartlett, L., Kabir, M.A. and Han, J., 2023. A Review on Business Process Management System Design: The Role of Virtualization and Work Design. IEEE Access.
- Benraad, M., Ozkan, B., Turetken, O. and Vanderfeesten, I., 2022. The influence of BPM-supportive culture and individual process orientation on process conformance. Business Process Management Journal, 28(8), pp.1-22.
- Benraad, M., Ozkan, B., Turetken, O. and Vanderfeesten, I., 2022. The influence of BPM-supportive culture and individual process orientation on process conformance. Business Process Management Journal, 28(8), pp.1-22.
- Benraad, M., Ozkan, B., Turetken, O. and Vanderfeesten, I., 2022. The influence of BPM-supportive culture and individual process orientation on process conformance. Business Process Management Journal, 28(8), pp.1-22.
- Binci, D., Belisari, S. and Appolloni, A., 2020. BPM and change management: An ambidextrous perspective. Business Process Management Journal, 26(1), pp.1-23.
- Cairney, P., & Toomey, C. (2024). Collaborative Policymaking: a qualitative systematic review of advice for policymakers. *Open Research Europe*, *4*, 204.
- Carvalho, A.M., Sampaio, P., Rebentisch, E., Carvalho, J.Á. and Saraiva, P., 2021. The influence of operational excellence on the culture and agility of organizations: evidence from industry. International Journal of Quality & Reliability Management, 38(7), pp.1520-1549.
- García-Peñalvo, F. J. (2022). Developing robust state-of-the-art reports: Systematic Literature Reviews.
- Idogawa, J., Bizarrias, F.S. and Câmara, R., 2023. Critical success factors for change management in business process management. Business Process Management Journal, 29(7), pp.2009-2033.

- Jerónimo, H.M., Henriques, P.L. and Carvalho, S.I., 2022. Being inclusive boosts impact of diversity practices on employee engagement. Management Research: Journal of the Iberoamerican Academy of Management, 20(2), pp.129-147.
- Koblianska, I., Varakin, D., Pihul, O., Somushkin, V., & Glukh, V. (2023). Review of scientific literature on BPM concept in social sciences. *Problems and Perspectives in Management*, 21(3), 84-99.
- Lee, N., 2021. Facebook nation. Springer New York.
- Marcus, R.J.J., 2021. BPM: Cultural Alignment of Organizational Units: A Case Study of a German Shipyard.
- Martinez, M.F.C., Liccioni, E.J., Naranjo, M.E.M. and Velazco, D.J.M., 2024. BUSINESS MANAGEMENT: COMMUNICATION AS A KEY COMPETENCE5. Economic Studies, 33(3), pp.160-180.
- Marzi, G., Balzano, M., Caputo, A., & Pellegrini, M. M. (2024). Guidelines for Bibliometric-Systematic Literature Reviews: 10 steps to combine analysis, synthesis and theory development. *International Journal of Management Reviews*.
- Mejia, C., Wu, M., Zhang, Y., & Kajikawa, Y. (2021). Exploring topics in bibliometric research through citation networks and semantic analysis. *Frontiers in Research Metrics and Analytics*, 6, 742311.
- Meuleman, L., 2021. Public administration and governance for the SDGs: Navigating between change and stability. Sustainability, 13(11), p.5914.
- Negros, J., 2022. Factors that leverage the key drivers of creating a culture of employee engagement in the business process outsourcing company: A qualitative inquiry. Journal of Education, Management and Development Studies, 2(1), pp.67-75.
- Osagie, J., 2021. What are the key determinants of an effective business process management in a logistics company and assess how best a strategic business management framework can be developed in order to enhance service excellence: Case study of Tranex Express Nigeria?. University of Wales Trinity Saint David (United Kingdom).
- Passas, I. (2024). Bibliometric analysis: the main steps. *Encyclopedia*, 4(2).
- Rekogama, K.M.R.S.B., 2022. How organisational transformation factors influence on market orientation and the effect of organisation culture? A study on Sri

Lankan telecommunication sector. University of Wales Trinity Saint David (United Kingdom).

- Rosemann, M. (2015). The service portfolio of a BPM center of excellence. In J. vom Brocke & M. Rosemann (Eds.), Handbook on Business Process Management 2: Strategic Alignment, Governance, People and Culture (pp. 267–284). Berlin, Germany: Springer.
- Rosemann, M., & vom Brocke, J. (2015). The six core elements of business process management. In J. vom Brocke & M. Rosemann (Eds.), Handbook on business process management 1: Introduction, methods, and information systems (pp. 105–122). Berlin, Germany: Springer. https://doi.org/ 10.1007/978-3-642-45100-3_5
- Rosemann, M., de Bruin, T., & Power, B. (2008). Bpm maturity. In J. Jeston & J. Nelis (Eds.), Business process management (2nd ed., pp. 313–329). Oxford, UK: Butterworth-Heinemann.
- Sankala, A. (2024). Strategic Alignment: Evaluating Organizational Processes through the Lens of Global Standardization.
- Saravia-Vergara, E., Sanchís-Pedregosa, C. and Albort-Morant, G., 2023. Organizational culture, process management and maturity of the process: an empirical study of the process status in Peru. Global Business Review, 24(2), pp.258-280.
- Schmiedel, T., Recker, J. and vom Brocke, J., 2020. The relation between BPM culture, BPM methods, and process performance: Evidence from quantitative field studies. Information & Management, 57(2), p.103175.
- Schmiedel, T., Recker, J., & vom Brocke, J. (2020). The relation between BPM culture, BPM methods, and process performance: Evidence from quantitative field studies. *Information & Management*, *57*(2), 103175.
- Seymour, L. F., & Koopman, A. (2022). Analysing factors impacting BPMS performance: a case of a challenged technology adoption. *Software and Systems Modeling*, 21(3), 869-890.
- Seymour, L.F. and Koopman, A., 2022. Analysing factors impacting BPMS performance: a case of a challenged technology adoption. Software and Systems Modeling, 21(3), pp.869-890.

- Shafagatova, A. and Van Looy, A., 2021. Alignment patterns for process-oriented appraisals and rewards: using HRM for BPM capability building. Business Process Management Journal, 27(3), pp.941-964.
- Simon, P., 2022. Project Management in the Hybrid Workplace. Racket Publishing.
- Suša Vugec, D., Bosilj Vukšić, V., Pejić Bach, M., Jaklič, J. and Indihar Štemberger, M., 2020. Business intelligence and organizational performance: The role of alignment with business process management. Business process management journal, 26(6), pp.1709-1730.
- Szelągowski, M., & Berniak-Woźny, J. (2024). BPM challenges, limitations and future development directions-a systematic literature review. *Business Process Management Journal*, 30(2), 505-557.
- Ubaid, A.M. and Dweiri, F.T., 2020. Business process management (BPM): terminologies and methodologies unified. International Journal of System Assurance Engineering and Management, 11(6), pp.1046-1064.
- Vom Brocke, J., Baier, M. S., Schmiedel, T., Stelzl, K., Röglinger, M., & Wehking, C. (2020). Context-aware business process management: method assessment and selection. *Business & Information Systems Engineering*, 1-18.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Article Extractions

Title	Author(s)	Journal/C onference	Yea r	Count ry	DOI	Key Insight
Cobus Verster	Organisa siekultuu r: 'n Bedryfso siologies e benaderi ng	South African Journal of Linguistic s	197 9	South Africa	10.1080/0258 0144.1979.10 429280	Explores the interaction of organizational members as a basis for defining unique cultural environments.
Patricia J. Sotirin	Organiza tional Culture: A Focus on Contemp orary Theory/R esearch in Organiza tional Commun	_	198 4	_	-	Reviews paradigms of organizational culture in communication and research methodologies.

	ication					
Joseph Morabit o, Anilku mar Bhate	Organiza tional Culture: An Object- Oriented Framewo rk	_	199 6	United States	10.1007/978- 0-585-27524- 6_10	Models culture with an object- oriented approach to link cultural elements with organizational outcomes.
Karel De Witte, Jaap J. van Muijen	Critical Question s for Research ers	European Journal of Work and Organizati onal Psycholog y	199 9	_	10.1080/1359 43299398186	Provides critical inquiries for conceptualizing and studying organizational culture.

Cross- Cultura 1 Study of BPR Initiativ es	James T. C. Teng et al.	Journal of Global IT Managem ent	200 0	USA, Taiwa n	10.1080/1097 198X.2000.10 856281	Compares the role of culture in BPR initiatives between the U.S. and Taiwan, finding that interdepartmenta 1 integration is critical to reengineering success regardless of national context.
Corpor ate Culture in Cleaner Product ion	Lesley Stone	Journal of Cleaner Productio n	200 0	New Zealan d	10.1016/S095 9- 6526(00)0003 7-8	Explores how corporate culture influences cleaner production initiatives, emphasizing the dynamics of cultural change.

Michae 1 Ritchie	Organiza tional Culture: An Examinat ion of Its Effect on the Internaliz ation Process	Southern Business Review	200 0	_	-	Examines the cognitive processes by which organizational culture influences members.
Sergi Macip i Simó, Joan Boada i Grau, Raúl de Diego Vallejo	Cultura Organiza cional y Formació n Continua	Journal of Work and Organizati onal Psycholog y	200 1	_	-	Links organizational culture to occupational risk prevention and training effectiveness.
W. Koot	Organiza tional Culture, Anthropo logy of	_	200 1	Nether lands	10.1016/B0- 08-043076- 7/00928-1	Examines cultural dynamics and identity construction in organizations.
Ryan Olson	Organiza tional culture putting the organizat ional culture concept to work	The Behavior Analyst Today	200 3	-	10.1037/H01 00001	Discusses the utility of culture for organizational improvement and adaptation.
--	--	--	----------	------------------	--------------------------------------	--
Timoth y R. Kaywor th, Doroth y E. Leidner	Organiza tional Culture as a Knowled ge Resource	-	200 4	United States	10.1007/978- 3-540-24746- 3_12	Explores culture as a strategic resource for managing knowledge assets.
Rodrig uez Benitez , Olga Isabel	The Organiza tional Culture: Insights and Reflectio ns	Social Science Research Network	200 7	-	-	Investigates organizational identity through symbols, rituals, and communication.

Impact of Organiz ational Culture on TQM Implem entation	S.S. Mohame d, Qin Yuanjian	Internatio nal Colloquiu m on Computin g, Communi cation, Control	200 8	China	10.1109/CCC M.2008.303	Investigates how supportive organizational cultures enhance TQM initiatives through a focus on learning and adaptation.
CRM Techno logical Initiativ es	Anne- Marie Croteau, Peter Li	Canadian Journal of Admin Sciences	200 9	Canad a	10.1111/J.193 6- 4490.2003.T B00303.X	Identifies critical success factors for CRM implementations, focusing on cultural readiness to manage customer-centric data strategies.

BPM 3.0: Trends in Process Manage ment	August- Wilhelm Scheer, Joerg Klueckm ann	Business Process Managem ent	200 9	Czech ia	10.1007/978- 3-642-03848- 8_2	Introduces the BPM 3.0 framework, emphasizing the need for cultural readiness and collaboration to support distributed BPM initiatives.
Toward s a BPM Success Model	Gavin Thompso n, Lisa F. Seymour et al.		200 9	South Africa	10.1007/978- 3-642-01862- 6_1	Proposes a BPM success framework, identifying culture, strategy, governance, and resources as critical enablers in financial services organizations.

Cultura 1 Analysi s of BPM Govern ance in India	Malini Jayagane sh, Graeme Shanks	European Conferenc e on Informatio n Systems	200 9	India	-	Explores the influence of national culture on BPM governance through case studies of Indian companies operating in global contexts.
ERP- Enable d BPM in India	Malini Jayagane sh, Graeme Shanks	_	200 9	India	-	Investigates the relationship between ERP systems and BPM governance, emphasizing cultural factors within Indian multinational corporations.

Cultura l Influen ce on IT- Driven Change	Maris G. Martinso ns et al.	Communi cations of The ACM	200 9	US, Global	10.1145/1498 765.1498798	Analyzes cultural influences on IT- enabled change, highlighting the interaction between national culture dimensions and IT adoption.
Role of Culture in BPM Initiativ es	Ahmad Alibabaei , Mohamm ad Aghdasi et al.	Australian Journal of Basic & Applied Sciences	201 0	Global	_	Examines the influence of culture across various BPM implementation phases, identifying key cultural elements impacting planning and problem-solving.

Organiz ational Culture and Sustain ability Initiativ es	Elizabeth Abbett, Anna Coldham , Ryan Whisnant	201 0			Highlights how the Competing Values Framework (CVF) links organizational culture to corporate sustainability initiatives, identifying culture as a key driver of success.
Applyi ng the BPM- Culture Model	Jan vom Brocke, Theresa Sinnl	201 0	Liecht enstei n	-	Evaluates the BPM-Culture Model in the context of Hilti Corporation's transformation initiatives, underscoring the importance of cultural alignment.

James G. Pierce	Organiza tional Culture in the U.S. Army	-	201 0	United States	-	Examines how culture aligns with leadership development in the U.S. Army.
Organiz ational Culture and KM Practice s	Claudette Chin- Loy, Bahaudin G. Mujtaba	Internatio nal Business & Economic s Research	201 1	North Ameri ca	10.19030/IBE R.V6I3.3350	Investigates the moderating role of culture in aligning knowledge management practices with organizational benefits, emphasizing the value of clan and adhocracy cultures.

Green BPM Movem ent	Jan C. Recker	_	201 1	Global	_	Explores how BPM methodologies contribute to sustainability, linking green practices with process efficiencies in organizational operations.
Culture and BPM: A Literatu re Review	Jan vom Brocke, Theresa Sinnl	Business Process Managem ent Journal	201 1	Liecht enstei n	10.1108/1463 71511111223 83	Reviews literature on culture in BPM, proposing a model that identifies under- researched areas and highlights the critical role of culture in BPM practices.

lisi Saame, Anne Reino, Maaja Vadi	Organiza tional Culture in an Estonian Hospital	Journal of Health Organisati on and Managem ent	201 1	Estoni a	10.1108/1477 72611111618 79	Links organizational culture to service quality and patient satisfaction in healthcare.
Excepti on Handlin g in BPM	Pedro Antunes	Systems, Man, and Cyberneti cs	201 1	Portug al	10.1109/TSM CC.2010.206 2504	Explores resilience in BPM through robust exception- handling mechanisms, emphasizing collaboration and escalation processes for system recovery.

Maxim Raluca, Pirjol Florenti na	Organiza tional Culture and Its Expressi on	Annals of Faculty of Economic s	201 2	_	-	Explores how cultural elements contribute to an organization's success and align with management practices.
Cultura 1 Fitness for BPM	Theresa Schmied el, Jan vom Brocke, Jan Recker	_	201 2	Global	-	Proposes a cultural readiness model for BPM, highlighting the need for targeted investments in developing a supportive culture for BPM initiatives.

Is Your Organiz ational Culture Fit for BPM?	Theresa Schmied el, Jan vom Brocke, Jan Recker	_	201 2	_	_	Discusses the necessity of aligning organizational culture with BPM principles to overcome implementation challenges.
Strategi c BPM in Croatia n Firms	Tomislav Hernaus, Mirjana Pejić Bach et al.	Baltic Journal of Managem ent	201 2	Croati a	10.1108/1746 52612112721 48	Analyzes how strategic approaches to BPM enhance financial and non-financial performance through robust performance measurement systems.

Effect of Organiz ational Culture on CRM Success	F. Al Duwailah , M. Ali	_	201 3	UK	_	Explores how adaptive learning cultures enhance CRM success through better customer information management.
Naomi Rotter	Organiza tional Culture and Environ ment		201 3	_		Defines culture as a "social glue" based on Edgar Schein's foundational work.
George Albert Rodrig ues, Purush otham M. Gowda	Organiza tional Culture in Academi c Libraries	SRELS Journal of Informatio n Managem ent	201 3	India	10.17821/SR ELS/2013/V5 0I3/43740	Studies organizational culture in academic libraries, focusing on member behaviors and norms.

Maria S. Plakhot nik, Tonnett e S. Rocco	Organiza tional Culture: A Literatur e Review of the AHRD 1994- 2005 Proceedi ngs	_	201 3	-	-	Reviews organizational culture's evolution and multidisciplinary research in HR development.
Samson Ibidunn i, Mayow a G. Agbool a	Organiza tional Culture: Creating, Changing , and Measurin g	European Journal of Business and Managem ent	201 3	_	-	Explores strategies for creating and sustaining culture to align with organizational goals.

Social Factors Prevent ing BPM Failures	Rebecca Bulander , Matthias Dietel	Internatio nal Conferenc e on e- Business	201 3	Germa ny	-	Highlights organizational and human factors critical for BPM implementation success, emphasizing proactive planning to address potential barriers.
Develo ping a BPM- Support ive Culture	Sanja Tumbas, Theresa Schmied el	Wirtschaft sinformati k und Angewand te Informatik	201 3	Germa ny	-	Identifies strategies to evolve a supportive cultural environment for BPM in global IT settings, based on an in- depth case study.

Context ual Factors for BPM Culture Develo pment	Sanja Tumbas, Theresa Schmied el et al.	European Conferenc e on Informatio n Systems	201 3	Germa ny, Liecht enstei n	-	Examines two contrasting organizational cases, showing how contextual factors shape strategies for developing BPM-supportive cultures.
Athena Xeniko u, Adrian Furnha m	The Concept of Organiza tional Culture	_	201 3	_	10.1007/978- 1-137-26546- 3_5	Provides a comprehensive framework for understanding and leveraging corporate culture.

Validati on Instrum ent for Cultura 1 Support of BPM	Theresa Schmied el, Jan vom Brocke, Jan Recker	Science & Engineeri ng Faculty	201 3	Liecht enstei n, Austra lia	-	Validates a BPM culture construct, providing organizations with a theoretical foundation and tools for cultural alignment in BPM adoption.
Correla tion of Culture and BPM Success	Brina Hribar, Jan Mendling	European Conferenc e on Informatio n Systems	201 4	Slove nia	-	Clan culture shows the strongest positive correlation with BPM adoption success, while hierarchy culture negatively correlates with BPM outcomes.

Empiric al Eviden ce for the Impact of Culture on Process Quality	Corinna Grau, J 眉 rgen Moorma nn	European Conferenc e on Informatio n Systems	201 4	Germa ny	-	Uses regression analysis to show how strategic orientation and leadership dimensions of culture strongly influence perceived process quality.
Daniel Gogoes cu	Cultural Dynamic s in Public Defense Institutio ns		201 4	Roma nia		Analyzes the role of culture in shaping values and behaviors in defense sector institutions.
Melissa Gutiérr ez Fierro	La cultura organizac ional	-	201 4	_	-	Highlights organizational culture as a driver for competitive advantage.

Colin Combe	Organisat ional Culture	_	201 4	_	10.1093/hebz/ 97801996429 91.003.0015	Explores theoretical models and managerial approaches to shaping positive organizational culture.
Abhish ek Gupta	Organiza tional Culture and Change	_	201 4	-	10.53983/IJM DS.V3I5.91	Discusses the alignment of culture with strategic changes to achieve organizational goals.
Bharthv ajan R	Organiza tional Culture and Climate	Internatio nal Journal of Innovative Research	201 4	_	_	Studies how culture and climate influence employee satisfaction and job performance.

Emanoi l Muscal u	Organiza tional Culture Change in the Organiza tion	_	201 4	-	-	Analyzes the challenges and dynamics of cultural change in organizations.
Amjad Ali, Bhaswa ti Patnaik	Organiza tional culture: a study on managers of private and public undertaki ngs	-	201 4	India	-	Explores differences in organizational culture between private and public sectors in India.
Adrian Hudrea	Studiul și analiza culturii organizaț ionale	_	201 4	Roma nia	-	Investigates cultural differences in Romanian public organizations and their effects on practices.

Instrum ent to Measur e Culture' s BPM Support	Theresa Schmied el, Jan vom Brocke, Jan Recker	Informatio n & Managem ent	201 4	Liecht enstei n, Austra lia	10.1016/J.IM. 2013.08.005	Introduces a validated instrument to measure how organizational culture supports BPM, offering a framework for aligning cultural attributes with BPM goals.
Cross- Organiz ational BPM Collabo ration	Thomas Karle, Kurt Teichent haler	IEEE Conferenc e on Business Informatic s	201 4	Europ e	10.1109/CBI. 2014.53	Focuses on BPM collaboration tools and approaches for managing distributed process models in multinational settings, leveraging wiki integrations.

Como a Cultura Organiz acional Influen cia BPM	Iveruska Bastos Arteiro	_	201 5	Brazil	-	Explores cultural facilitators and barriers for BPM initiatives using an exploratory case study in a public organization.
How Organiz ational Culture Influen ces BPM Evoluti on	Iveruska Jatobá, Carina Alves		201 5	Brazil	10.5555/2814 058.2814173	Case study examining cultural facilitators and barriers, offering insights into how culture influences BPM implementation in public and private organizations.

How Organiz ational Culture Facilita tes a Global BPM Project	Jan vom Brocke, Martin Petry et al.	Business Process Managem ent Book Chapter	201 5	Liecht enstei n	10.1007/978- 3-642-45103- 4_29	Analyzes Hilti Corporation's global BPM project, emphasizing cultural alignment to facilitate process change and overcome employee resistance.
BPM Center of Excelle nce	Mark von Rosing et al.	-	201 5	_	10.1016/B978 -0-12- 799959- 3.00012-4	Discusses the establishment of BPM Centers of Excellence to ensure cultural alignment and governance in BPM initiatives.

Nel Arianty	Pengaruh budaya organisas i terhadap kinerja pegawai	_	201 5	Indon esia	10.30596/JIM B.V14I2.189	Links organizational culture to enhanced employee performance and productivity.
Culture in BPM: Values for Success	Theresa Schmied el et al.	Business Process Managem ent Book Chapter	201 5	Global	10.1007/978- 3-642-45103- 4_27	Introduces a framework identifying cultural values critical for BPM success and offers tools to evaluate organizational culture's alignment with BPM principles.

Process Accept ance and BPM Success	Thomas Muellerle ile et al.	IEEE Conferenc e on Business Informatic s	201 5	Germa ny	10.1109/CBI. 2015.11	Explores how social and organizational factors influence the acceptance of business processes, impacting BPM initiatives.
Approa ches to BPM Adopti on by Culture	Brina Buh	Dissertatio n	201 6	_	-	Proposes a framework linking organizational culture types to BPM adoption success, addressing research gaps in this relationship.

Approa ch towards BPM Adopti on under Hierarc hy- Market Culture	Brina Buh, Mojca Štemberg er	_	201 6	South- East Europ e	10.15458/854 51.20	Case study identifying formal, organized approaches as key for BPM success in organizations with a hierarchy- market culture.
Process Culture : Maturit y, Drivers , and Barriers	Doris Weitlane r	Business Process Managem ent Proceedin gs	201 6	Austri a	10.1145/2882 879.2882883	Surveys Austrian firms to identify cultural drivers (teamwork, customer focus) and barriers (age of company) for achieving BPM cultural maturity.

Marcus Selart, Vidar Schei	Organiza tional Culture	_	201 6	Norwa y	10.1007/978- 3-319-01384- 8_553	Explores organizational subcultures and their impact on organizational creativity.
Parvin Shaikh	Organiza tional Culture in the Hospitali ty Sector	IRA- Internatio nal Journal of Managem ent & Social Sciences	201 6	India	10.21013/JM SS.V3.N3.P1 2	Assesses cultural ethos in hospitality organizations using the OCTAPACE model.
S. Valenti ne Usha Kalaich elvi, Auxilia Antony , A. Nelson Vimala nathan	A study on organizat ional culture	Internatio nal Journal of Research	201 7	United States	10.29121/GR ANTHAALA YAH.V5.I8(S E).2017.2283	Focuses on cultural dimensions shaping organizational behavior and performance.

Kijpoki n Kasems ap	Explorin g the Role of Organiza tional Culture	_	201 7	_	10.4018/978- 1-5225-1968- 3.CH006	Highlights culture's role in fostering unity, communication, and strategic goal achievement.
Organis ation Culture and BPM Success	Howjer Gu, John D'Ambra , Ken Stevens	_	201 7	_	-	Proposes an extended model for examining BPM culture based on organizational cultural dimensions, linking them to BPM success.
Viktorij a Kafedzi ska	Media Organiza tional Culture and Employe e Behavior	-	201 7	Switze rland	-	Examines the alignment of media organizational culture with employee motivation and performance.

Mungiu - Pupăza n Marian a Claudia	The Role of Organiza tional Culture in Organiza tion Manage ment	Annals - Economy Series	201 7	_	-	Describes culture as integral to shaping organizational behavior and performance.
Proposi tions on Organiz ational Culture Interact ion in BPM	Mojca Štemberg er et al.	Business Process Managem ent Journal	201 8	Slove nia, Austri a, Croati a	10.1108/BPM J-02-2017- 0023	Links BPM success to cultural characteristics (clan, hierarchy, adhocracy) using data from organizations in three countries.
S. Gayathr i	Organisat ional Culture and Employe e Engagem ent	Journal of Emerging Technolog ies and Innovative Research	201 8	_	-	Analyzes culture's role in boosting employee engagement and organizational goals.

Mihael a N. Otelea	Organisat ional Culture: An Essential Factor for Increasin g the Competit iveness of Compani es	-	201 8	-	10.4018/978- 1-5225-2965- 1.CH005	Discusses how eliminating fear and enhancing employee engagement fosters competitive advantage.
Mary Jo Hatch	Organiza tional Culture	-	201 8	-	10.1093/hebz/ 97801987239 81.003.0006	Analyzes cultural debates and change theories within organizations.
Amand a Santos de Souza, Daniela Nagam atsu Dias, Juliana Soares Matos, Ludmill	A cultura organizac ional e o planejam ento de ações	_	201 9	Brazil	-	Examines cultural elements affecting organizational planning and decision-making in a Brazilian context.

a da Silva Macêdo , Daniela Campo s Bahia Moscon						
BPM and Organiz ational Culture in Big Compa nies	Dalia Suša Vugec	Cross- Country Research	201 9	Slove nia, Austri a, Croati a	N/A	Discusses differences in BPM maturity across countries, emphasizing culture's role in process performance.
Organiz ational Culture in Polish Commu nity Offices	Magdale na Raczyńsk a, Krzyszto f Krukows ki	Administr ative Sciences	201 9	Polan d	10.3390/AD MSCI904009 6	Highlights culture's dual role as a stimulant or barrier in implementing BPM in public organizations.

BPM and BI Alignm ent in SMEs	Mirjana Pejić Bach et al.	IJEBM	201 9	Croati a	10.1177/1847 97901987418 2	Investigates how alignment between BPM and BI impacts performance, emphasizing the role of organizational culture in small to medium enterprises.
The Role of Culture in BPM Adopti on	Naif Aljlayel	_	201 9	-	-	Explores how organizational culture influences BPM adoption and highlights gaps in the literature on empirical evidence for cultural impact.

E. Erlygin a, Yu. Abram ova	Organiza tional Culture as a Factor of Organiza tional Innovativ eness	_	201 9	_	10.33619/241 4-2948/48/31	Highlights how culture fosters innovation through communication and cooperative behaviors.
Kosova re Ukshini , Besime Ziberi	Organiza tional Culture in Academi c Institutio ns		201 9	Kosov o		Applies Hofstede's dimensions to academic institutions, linking culture to global organizational dynamics.
Н. С. Ринкев ич	Organiza tional Culture: Challeng es, Threats, and Trends	-	201 9	Ukrai ne	10.12958/181 7-3772-2019- 3(57)-123- 136	Diagnoses cultural barriers in enterprise digitalization and proposes transformative strategies.

Motivat ions for BPM Adopti on	Renata Gabryelc zyk, Aneta Bierniko wicz	Federated Conferenc e on CSIS	201 9	Polan d	10.15439/201 9F229	Proposes a taxonomy for BPM adoption motivations, linking organizational scope, IT presence, and internal/external drivers to successful initiatives.
BPM Adopti on at Bilfing er	Seyed Bolboli, Ludger Hasenaue r, Cristina Cabanilla s	Business Process Managem ent Case Study	201 9	-	-	Explores BPM adoption in complex environments using flexible methods (e.g., SCRUM) to adapt processes to customer needs in dynamic corporate setups.

IT Culture and BPM Adopti on	Brian Letts, Vu Tran	Business Process Managem ent Book Chapter	202 0	United States	10.1007/978- 3-030-58638- 6_13	Finds that adhocracy cultures are most effective for BPM adoption, contrasting market and hierarchy cultures.
Process Manage ment and Maturit y in Peru	Enrique Saravia- Vergara et al.	Global Business Review	202 0	Peru, Spain	10.1177/0972 15092091603 6	Analyzes BPM maturity levels across Peruvian organizations, emphasizing the role of cultural alignment in achieving process efficiency.
Lina Karabet yan	Organiza tional Culture's Impact on Career Satisfacti on	-	202 0	Turke y	10.26650/IU KAD.2019.19 .003	Examines the role of culture in enhancing women's career satisfaction in the banking sector.

Nimmi Agarwa l, Rachna Bansal, Roopali Fulzele	Review on Organiza tional Culture	_	202 0	_	_	Examines culture's influence on motivation, learning, and group decision- making.
BPM Culture and Process Perfor mance	Theresa Schmied el et al.	Informatio n & Managem ent	202 0	Global	10.1016/J.IM. 2019.103175	Quantitative study showing that BPM methods enhance process performance indirectly by fostering a BPM- supportive culture.
Challen ges in BPMS Adopti on	Lisa F. Seymour, Ashley Koopma n	Software & Systems Modeling	202 1	South Africa	10.1007/S102 70-021- 00922-W	Explains factors influencing BPMS adoption, focusing on governance, resource challenges, and cultural misalignment in legacy IT environments.

Modeli ng Relatio nship Betwee n BPR and Organiz ational Culture	Aljazzi Fetais, Galal Abdella et al.	Applied System Innovation	202 2	Qatar	10.3390/asi50 40066	Correlates cultural factors like innovation and leadership with BPR success using a fuzzy-based hierarchical model.
Penny Willia ms	Definitio ns and Function s of Organiza tional Culture	_	202 2	United Kingd om	10.4337/9781 788976268.0 0008	Provides an in- depth analysis of cultural frameworks, sub- cultures, and their organizational significance.
BPM- Support ive Culture and Process Orienta tion	Minou Benraad et al.	Business Process Managem ent Journal	202 2	Global (Surve y- based)	10.1108/bpmj -08-2020- 0363	Highlights how BPM-supportive culture fosters individual process orientation, directly impacting process conformance.
Daniel King, Scott Lawley	Organiza tional Culture	_	202 2	_	10.1093/hebz/ 97801928934 75.003.0009	Examines how organizational culture shapes behavior and adapts to technological and societal changes, such as the COVID-19 era.
---	--	---	----------	-------------	---	--
Olena Grishno va, Olena Panche nko	Organiza tional culture in the system of social responsib ility of high education institutio ns	Problems and Prospects of Economic s and Managem ent	202 2	Ukrai ne	10.25140/241 1-5215-2022- 4(32)-9-16	Highlights the role of universities in cultivating culture for societal transformation.

Andres Dharma Nurhali m	Role of Organiza tional Culture in Performa nce	Primanom ics	202 2	_	10.31253/pe.v 20i3.1194	Highlights culture's influence on organizational performance and development strategies.
Adrian Tawai, La Ode Herman Halika	Study on the Applicati on of Organiza tional Culture	Internatio nal Journal of Scientific Research in Science	202 2	Indon esia	10.32628/ijsrs et229429	Investigates culture's impact on efficiency and adaptability in organizations.
Guldast a Sarwari	The Role of Culture in the Organiza tion	Journal of Humanitie s and Social Sciences Studies	202 2	_	10.32996/jhss s.2022.4.1.27	Discusses culture's importance in guiding organizational behavior and adapting to dynamic environments.

Langua ge in Record keeping Culture	Viviane Frings- Hessami, Gillian Oliver	Records Managem ent Journal	202 2	Switze rland	10.1108/rmj- 05-2021-0022	Analyzes the impact of local language and terminology on the success of recordkeeping initiatives in Francophone environments.
Yuni Syafria ni, Suci Nur Ramad hani	Cultural Impact on Educatio nal Institutio ns	_	202 3	Indon esia	10.58578/mas aliq.v3i1.790	Focuses on cultural frameworks 4 driving 4 educational 5 success and 1 institutional 4 values.
Explori ng BPM Adopti on in South African SOEs	Lumka Salamntu , Frank Makoza	Conferenc e on ICT and Society	202 3	South Africa	10.1109/ictas 56421.2023.1 0082735	Identifies leadership and technology as critical factors for BPM success in state-owned enterprises.

Fred Sanfilip po, Claire Pomero y, David N. Bailey	Organiza tional Culture	_	202 3	_	10.1007/978- 3-031-41177- 9_6	Describes how leaders can leverage culture for improving teamwork and organizational goals.
Luis Ernesto Paz Enrique	Organiza tional Culture and Corruptio n	-	202 3	-	10.4337/9781 803927954.0 0010	Investigates the interplay between organizational culture and ethical behavior to combat corruption.
Emilia Giol- Calefari u	Organiza tional Culture within Cultural Institutio ns	Bulletin of the Transilvan ia University of Braşov	202 3	Roma nia	10.31926/but. pa.2022.15.64 .3.7	Studies how organizational culture enhances quality and leadership in cultural institutions.

Organiz ational Culture and BPM Ambide xterity in the EU Public Sector	Tomasz Helbin, Amy Van Looy	Hawaii Internatio nal Conferenc e on System Sciences Proceedin gs	202 3	Europ ean Union	10.24251/hics s.2023.215	Proposes the FADE model, linking cultural values like agility and innovation to BPM ambidexterity in EU public organizations.
BPM Ambide xterity in EU Public Sector	Tomasz Helbin, Amy Van Looy	HICSS Proceedin gs	202 3	Europ ean Union	10.24251/hics s.2023.215	Provides a framework to balance exploratory and exploitative BPM practices in diverse cultural settings.
Elly Kharis ma, Supriyo no Supriyo no	Cultural Impact on Human Resource Strategie s	Mestaka	202 4	Indon esia	10.58184/mes taka.v3i1.240	Explores the role of culture in enhancing HR strategies for organizational development.

Assessi ng the Impact of Organiz ational Culture on TQM Progra ms	Dilip Kumar, M Kumar	Internatio nal Journal for Multidisci plinary Research	202 4	India	10.36948/ijfm r.2024.v06i04 .25044	Examines cultural elements crucial for sustaining TQM programs, emphasizing leadership and collaboration.
Impact of Culture on Knowle dge Manage ment Practice s	Meredith Wanjala	European Journal of Informatio n & Knowledg e	202 4	Global	10.47941/ejik m.2064	Discusses how supportive cultures enhance knowledge- sharing practices, while rigid cultures act as barriers, linking culture with knowledge management success.

Siti Patonah	Organiza tional Culture	_	202 4	Indon esia	10.31219/osf. io/q8chf	Highlights culture's role in establishing business advantages.
Nicolas Spatola	Organiza tional Culture	_	202 4	_	10.31219/osf. io/y2fj8	Proposes a new framework to measure and evaluate competing cultural dimensions.
Kemala Dwi	Organiza tional Culture	_	202 4	_	10.31219/osf. io/ebjp8	Emphasizes shared assumptions and values as the foundation of organizational behavior.
Rea Aprila Soband i	Organiza tional Culture	_	202 4	_	10.31219/osf. io/tvkz8	Analyzes foundational assumptions and shared values in organizations.

Sahra Vadya	Organiza tional Culture	_	202 4	_	10.31219/osf. io/uz6b8	Explores shared beliefs and assumptions shaping organizational responses to challenges.
Olena Druhov a, Xia Li	Organiza tional culture as the basis of successfu 1 business	Ukrainian Journal of Applied Economic s	202 4	_	10.36887/241 5-8453-2024- 2-24	Analyzes how culture affects business competitiveness and employee satisfaction.
Addisal em Tadesse Bogale, Keneni sa Lemie Debela	Organiza tional culture: a systemati c review	_	202 4	-	10.1080/2331 1975.2024.23 40129	Reviews organizational culture's dimensions and its influence on workplace dynamics.

Appendix 2: Questionnaire

1. Organizational Culture Supports BPM Initiatives

To what extent does your organization's culture prioritize collaboration and teamwork for process improvements?



Agree

Neutral
Disagree

Strongly Disagree

How effectively does your organization's culture align with the goals and principles of BPM initiatives?

Strongly Agree
Agree
Neutral
Disagree
Strongly Disagree

Do leadership and management consistently demonstrate support for BPM initiatives in your organization?

Strongly Agree
Agree
Neutral

Disagree
21200

Strongly Disagree

2. Employees Are Engaged in BPM Activities

Are employees actively involved in designing and implementing BPM initiatives in your organization?

	Strongly Agree
Γ	Agree
Γ	Neutral
Γ	Disagree
	Strongly Disagree

Do employees feel motivated to participate in BPM activities and contribute ideas for process improvements?

Strongly Agree
Agree

1	Neutral
---	---------

Disagree

Strongly Disagree

How often do employees collaborate across departments for BPM-related tasks?

	Strongly Agree
	Agree
	Neutral
	Disagree
Γ	Strongly Disagree

3. Training Programs Effectively Support BPM Initiatives

How effective are the training programs in equipping employees with the skills required for BPM activities?



Agree
Neutral
Disagree
Strongly Disagree

Do the training programs provided cover both technical and managerial aspects of BPM?

Strongly Agree
Agree
Neutral
Disagree
Strongly Disagree

Are employees provided with adequate opportunities for ongoing professional development related to BPM?

Strongly Agree
Strongly Agree

Agree

Neutral
Disagree

Strongly Disagree

4. Use of Technology Improves BPM Effectiveness

To what extent does your organization utilize technology (e.g., automation, analytics) to support BPM initiatives?

	Strongly Agree
Γ	Agree
Γ	Neutral
Γ	Disagree
Γ	Strongly Disagree

Do employees have access to modern tools and software that enhance BPM workflows?



Agree
Neutral
Disagree
Strongly Disagree

Is the technology used in BPM initiatives user-friendly and well-integrated into existing processes?

Strongly Agree
Agree
Neutral
Disagree
Strongly Disagree

5. Challenges Exist in BPM Implementation (e.g., Resistance)

Are resistance to change and employee hesitancy significant barriers to BPM implementation in your organization?

Strongly Agree

Agree
Neutral
Disagree
Strongly Disagree

How frequently do challenges such as resource constraints or lack of training hinder BPM initiatives?

Strongly Agree
Agree
Neutral
Disagree
Strongly Disagree

Is there a structured change management framework in place to address resistance during BPM implementation?

Strongly	Agree
Sublight	115100

Agree

Neutral

Disagree

□ Strongly Disagree

Appendix 3 - Interview Question

Process Mapping Workshops

- 1. How has process mapping improved your workflow clarity?
- 2. Were the desired outcomes of these workshops achieved?

Digital Transformation Initiatives

- 1. How has the cloud-based BPM platform affected workflow efficiency?
- 2. What challenges did you face during the transition?

Employee Training Programs

- 1. How has BPM-specific training impacted your work?
- 2. Do you feel the training was sufficient?

Performance Measurement Systems

- 1. Are the KPIs relevant and effective in measuring success?
- 2. How frequently are these KPIs reviewed?

Leadership Involvement

- 1. How involved are the C-level executives in BPM initiatives?
- 2. What impact has this involvement had on your work?

Collaboration Mechanisms

- 1. How effective are the interdepartmental task forces in fostering collaboration?
- 2. What could be improved in this mechanism?

Continuous Improvement Cycles

- 1. How has adopting Agile methodology improved BPM processes?
- 2. What challenges have you encountered in this iterative process?

Knowledge Sharing Initiatives

- 1. How does the centralized repository benefit you?
- 2. How frequently do you use this repository?

Appendix 4 - SPSS Output

GET DATA

/TYPE=XLSX

/FILE='C:\Users\ELVIS\Downloads\BPM_Survey_Responses.xlsx'

/SHEET=name 'Sheet1'

/CELLRANGE=FULL

/READNAMES=ON

/DATATYPEMIN PERCENTAGE=95.0

/HIDDEN IGNORE=YES.

EXECUTE.

DATASET NAME DataSet1 WINDOW=FRONT.

FREQUENCIES VARIABLES=Organizational culture supports BPM initiatives

UseoftechnologyimprovesBPMeffectiveness

/ORDER=ANALYSIS.

Frequencies

Notes

Output Created

Comments		
Input	Active Dataset	DataSet1
	Filter	<none></none>
	Weight	<none></none>
	Split File	<none></none>
	N of Rows in Working	50
	Data File	
Missing V	Value Definition of Missing	User-defined missing
Handling		values are treated as
		missing.
	Cases Used	Statistics are based on
		all cases with valid data.
Syntax		FREQUENCIES
		VARIABLES=Organiza
		tionalculturesupportsBP
		Minitiatives
		Useoftechnologyimprov
		esBPMeffectiveness
		/ORDER=ANALYSIS.
Resources	Processor Time	00:00:00.00
	Elapsed Time	00:00:00.46

[DataSet1]

Statistics

		Organizationa		Use	of
		1	culture	technology	
		supports		improves	
		BPM		BPM	
		initiati	ves	effectivene	SS
N	Valid	50		50	
	Missing	0		0	

Frequency Table

				Valid	Cumulative
		Frequency	Percent	Percent	Percent
Valid	2	1	2.0	2.0	2.0
	3	6	12.0	12.0	14.0
	4	17	34.0	34.0	48.0
	5	26	52.0	52.0	100.0
	Total	50	100.0	100.0	

Organizational culture supports BPM initiatives

Use of technology improves BPM effectiveness

				Valid	Cumulative
		Frequency	Percent	Percent	Percent
Valid	2	3	6.0	6.0	6.0
	3	1	2.0	2.0	8.0
	4	12	24.0	24.0	32.0
	5	34	68.0	68.0	100.0
	Total	50	100.0	100.0	

CORRELATIONS

/VARIABLES=OrganizationalculturesupportsBPMinitiatives EmployeesareengagedinBPMactivities TrainingprogramseffectivelysupportBPMinitiatives UseoftechnologyimprovesBPMeffectiveness ChallengesexistinBPMimplementatione.g.resistance

/PRINT=TWOTAIL NOSIG

/MISSING=PAIRWISE.

Correlations

Notes

Output Created		16-DEC-2024 09:30:34	
Comments			
Input		Active Dataset	DataSet1
		Filter	<none></none>
		Weight	<none></none>
		Split File	<none></none>
		N of Rows in Working	50
		Data File	
Missing	Value	Definition of Missing	User-defined missing
Handling			values are treated as
			missing.
		Cases Used	Statistics for each pair
			of variables are based on
			all the cases with valid
			data for that pair.

Syntax		CORRELATIONS
		/VARIABLES=Organiz
		ationalculturesupportsB
		PMinitiatives
		Employeesareengagedin
		BPMactivities
		Trainingprogramseffecti
		velysupportBPMinitiativ
		es
		Useoftechnologyimprov
		esBPMeffectiveness
		ChallengesexistinBPMi
		mplementatione.g.resist
		ance
		/PRINT=TWOTAIL
		NOSIG
		/MISSING=PAIRWISE.
Resources	Processor Time	00:00:00.14
	Elapsed Time	00:00:00.42

Correlations

(Organizat		Training	
i	onal	Employe	programs	
(culture	es are	effectivel	
S	supports	engaged	y support	
1	BPM	in BPM	BPM	
i	nitiatives	activities	initiatives	

Organizational	Pearson	1	.078	039
culture supports	Correlation			
BPM initiatives	Sig. (2-tailed)		.590	.788
	N	50	50	50
Employees are	Pearson	.078	1	073
engaged in BPM	Correlation			
activities	Sig. (2-tailed)	.590		.616
	N	50	50	50
Training	Pearson	039	073	1
programs	Correlation			
effectively	Sig. (2-tailed)	.788	.616	
support BPM	N	50	50	50
initiatives				
Use of	Pearson	056	157	075
technology	Correlation			
improves BPM	Sig. (2-tailed)	.701	.275	.604
effectiveness	N	50	50	50
Challenges exist	Pearson	.051	.101	113
in BPM	Correlation			
implementation	Sig. (2-tailed)	.725	.487	.435
(e.g., resistance)	N	50	50	50

REGRESSION

/MISSING LISTWISE

/STATISTICS COEFF OUTS R ANOVA

/CRITERIA=PIN(.05) POUT(.10)

/NOORIGIN

/DEPENDENT EmployeesareengagedinBPMactivities

/METHOD=ENTER OrganizationalculturesupportsBPMinitiatives.

Regression

Notes			
Output Created			16-DEC-2024 09:31:47
Comments			
Input		Active Dataset	DataSet1
		Filter	<none></none>
		Weight	<none></none>
		Split File	<none></none>
		N of Rows in Working	50
		Data File	
Missing	Value	Definition of Missing	User-defined missing
Handling			values are treated as
			missing.
		Cases Used	Statistics are based on
			cases with no missing
			values for any variable
			used.
Syntax			REGRESSION
			/MISSING LISTWISE
			/STATISTICS COEFF
			OUTS R ANOVA
			/CRITERIA=PIN(.05)
			POUT(.10)
			/NOORIGIN
			/DEPENDENT
			Employeesareengagedin
			BPMactivities
			/METHOD=ENTER
			Organizationalculturesu
			pportsBPMinitiatives.

Resources	Processor Time	00:00:00.09
	Elapsed Time	00:00:00.55
	Memory Required	2528 bytes
	Additional Memo	ry 0 bytes
	Required for Residu	al
	Plots	

Variables Entered/Removed^a

	Variables	Variables	
Model	Entered	Removed	Method
1	Organizationa	•	Enter
	l culture		
	supports		
	BPM		
	initiatives ^b		

- a. Dependent Variable: Employees are engaged
- in BPM activities
- b. All requested variables entered.

Model Summary

			Adjusted R	Std. Error of
Model	R	R Square	Square	the Estimate
1	.078ª	.006	015	.611

a. Predictors: (Constant), Organizational culture supports BPM initiatives

ANOVA^a

		Sum of				
Model		Squares	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.
1	Regression	.110	1	.110	.294	.590 ^b
	Residual	17.890	48	.373		
	Total	18.000	49			

a. Dependent Variable: Employees are engaged in BPM activities

b. Predictors: (Constant), Organizational culture supports BPM initiatives

Coefficients^a

			Unstandardiz	zed	Standardized		
			Coefficients		Coefficients		
Model			В	Std. Error	Beta	t	Sig.
1	(Constant)		4.134	.497		8.311	.000
	Organizational	culture	.061	.112	.078	.543	.590
	supports	BPM					
	initiatives						

a. Dependent Variable: Employees are engaged in BPM activities

FACTOR

/VARIABLES TrainingprogramseffectivelysupportBPMinitiatives

EmployeesareengagedinBPMactivities

UseoftechnologyimprovesBPMeffectiveness

/MISSING LISTWISE

/ANALYSIS TrainingprogramseffectivelysupportBPMinitiatives

EmployeesareengagedinBPMactivities

UseoftechnologyimprovesBPMeffectiveness

/PRINT INITIAL EXTRACTION ROTATION

/CRITERIA MINEIGEN(1) ITERATE(25)

/EXTRACTION PC

/CRITERIA ITERATE(25)

/ROTATION VARIMAX /METHOD=CORRELATION.

Factor Analysis

Notes

Output Created		16-DEC-2024 09:34:15	
Comments			
Input		Active Dataset	DataSet1
		Filter	<none></none>
		Weight	<none></none>
		Split File	<none></none>
		N of Rows in Working	50
		Data File	
Missing	Value	Definition of Missing	MISSING=EXCLUDE:
Handling			User-defined missing
			values are treated as
			missing.
		Cases Used	LISTWISE: Statistics
			are based on cases with
			no missing values for
			any variable used.

Syntax

FACTOR

/VARIABLES

Trainingprogramseffecti velysupportBPMinitiativ es Employeesareengagedin BPMactivities

Useoftechnologyimprov esBPMeffectiveness /MISSING LISTWISE /ANALYSIS Trainingprogramseffecti velysupportBPMinitiativ es Employeesareengagedin **BPMactivities** Useoftechnologyimprov esBPMeffectiveness /PRINT **INITIAL EXTRACTION ROTATION** /CRITERIA MINEIGEN(1) ITERATE(25)

ITERATE(25) /EXTRACTION PC /CRITERIA ITERATE(25)

/ROTATION

VARIMAX

/METHOD=CORRELA TION.

Resources	Processor Time	e	00:00:00.05	
	Elapsed Time		00:00:00.61	
	Maximum	Memory	1984 (1.938K) bytes	
	Required			

Communalities

		Extractio
	Initial	n
Training programs	1.000	.842
effectively support BPM		
initiatives		
Employees are engaged	1.000	.685
in BPM activities		
Use of technology	1.000	.682
improves BPM		
effectiveness		

Extraction Method: Principal Component Analysis.

Total Variance Explained

				Extraction Sums of Squared				
	Initial	Eigenvalue	es	Loadings				
Compo		% of	Cumulat		% of	Cumulat		
nent	Total	Variance	ive %	Total	Variance	ive %		
1	1.157	38.578	38.578	1.157	38.578	38.578		
2	1.052	35.072	73.649	1.052	35.072	73.649		
3	.791	26.351	100.000					

Component Matrix^a

	Component		
	1	2	
Training programs	.015	.918	
effectively support BPM			
initiatives			
Employees are engaged	.757	334	
in BPM activities			
Use of technology	764	314	
improves BPM			
effectiveness			

Extraction Method: Principal Component Analysis.^a

a. 2 components extracted.

Rotated Component Matrix^a

	Component		
	1	2	
Training programs	001	.918	
effectively support BPM			
initiatives			
Employees are engaged	.763	321	
in BPM activities			
Use of technology	759	326	
improves BPM			
effectiveness			

Extraction Method: Principal Component Analysis.

Rotation Method: Varimax with Kaiser Normalization.^a

a. Rotation converged in 3 iterations.

Component	Transformation
Matrix	

Component	1	2
1	1.000	.017
2	017	1.000

Extraction Method: Principal Component Analysis. Rotation Method: Varimax with Kaiser Normalization.

REGRESSION

/MISSING LISTWISE /STATISTICS COEFF OUTS R ANOVA /CRITERIA=PIN(.05) POUT(.10) /NOORIGIN /DEPENDENT EmployeesareengagedinBPMactivities /METHOD=ENTER ChallengesexistinBPMimplementatione.g.resistance.

Regression

Notes

Output Created		16-DEC-2024 09:35:36
Comments		
Input	Active Dataset	DataSet1
	Filter	<none></none>

		Weight		<none></none>
		Split File		<none></none>
		N of Rows in	Working	50
		Data File		
Missing	Value	Definition of M	issing	User-defined missing
Handling				values are treated as
				missing.
		Cases Used		Statistics are based on
				cases with no missing
				values for any variable
				used.
Syntax				REGRESSION
				/MISSING LISTWISE
				/STATISTICS COEFF
				OUTS R ANOVA
				/CRITERIA=PIN(.05)
				POUT(.10)
				/NOORIGIN
				/DEPENDENT
				Employeesareengagedin
				BPMactivities
				/METHOD=ENTER
				ChallengesexistinBPMi
				mplementatione.g.resist
				ance.
Resources		Processor Time		00:00:00.05
		Elapsed Time		00:00:00.05
		Memory Requir	red	2528 bytes
		Additional	Memory	0 bytes
		Required for	Residual	
		Plots		

Variables Entered/Removed^a

	Variables	Variables	
Model	Entered	Removed	Method
1	Challenges	•	Enter
	exist in BPM		
	implementati		
	on (e.g.,		
	resistance) ^b		

- a. Dependent Variable: Employees are engaged
- in BPM activities
- b. All requested variables entered.

Model Summary

			Adjusted R	Std. Error of
Model	R	R Square	Square	the Estimate
1	.101ª	.010	011	.609

a. Predictors: (Constant), Challenges exist in BPM implementation (e.g., resistance)

ANOVA^a

		Sum of				
Model		Squares	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.
1	Regression	.182	1	.182	.490	.487 ^b
	Residual	17.818	48	.371		
	Total	18.000	49			

a. Dependent Variable: Employees are engaged in BPM activities

b. Predictors: (Constant), Challenges exist in BPM implementation (e.g., resistance)

Coefficients^a

		Unstandardized		Standardized		
		Coefficients		Coefficients		
Model		В	Std. Error	Beta	t	Sig.
1	(Constant)	4.091	.450		9.091	.000
	Challenges exist in	.076	.108	.101	.700	.487
	BPM implementation					
	(e.g., resistance)					

a. Dependent Variable: Employees are engaged in BPM activities

QUICK CLUSTER Organizational culture supports BPM initiatives

EmployeesareengagedinBPMactivities

TrainingprogramseffectivelysupportBPMinitiatives UseoftechnologyimprovesBPMeffectiveness

Challenges exist in BPM implementation e.g. resistance

/MISSING=LISTWISE

/CRITERIA=CLUSTER(2) MXITER(10) CONVERGE(0)

/METHOD=KMEANS(NOUPDATE)

/PRINT INITIAL.

Quick Cluster

Notes

Output Created	16-DEC-2024 09:37:43
Comments	

Input		Active Dataset	DataSet1
		Filter	<none></none>
		Weight	<none></none>
		Split File	<none></none>
		N of Rows in Working	50
		Data File	
Missing V	Value	Definition of Missing	User-defined missing
Handling			values are treated as
			missing.
		Cases Used	Statistics are based on
			cases with no missing
			values for any clustering
			variable used.

Syntax		QUICK CLUSTER
		Organizationalculturesu
		pportsBPMinitiatives
		Employeesareengagedin
		BPMactivities
		Trainingprogramseffecti
		velysupportBPMinitiativ
		es
		Useoftechnologyimprov
		esBPMeffectiveness
		ChallengesexistinBPMi
		mplementatione.g.resist
		ance
		/MISSING=LISTWISE
		/CRITERIA=CLUSTER
		(2) MXITER(10)
		CONVERGE(0)
		/METHOD=KMEANS(
		NOUPDATE)
		/PRINT INITIAL.
Resources	Processor Time	00:00:00.03
	Elapsed Time	00:00:00.08
	Workspace Required	816 bytes

Initial Cluster Centers

Cluster 1 2

Organizational culture supports BPM	2	5
initiatives		
Employees are engaged	4	5
in BPM activities		
Training programs	5	3
effectively support BPM		
initiatives		
Use of technology	4	5
improves BPM		
effectiveness		
Challenges exist in	4	5
BPM implementation		
(e.g., resistance)		

Iteration History^a

	Change i	n	Cluster
	Centers		
Iteration	1	2	
1	1.868	1.48	5
2	.141	.121	
3	.077	.076	
4	.129	.101	
5	.287	.205	
6	.117	.084	
7	.095	.069	
8	.071	.046	
9	.000	.000	

a. Convergence achieved due to no or small change in cluster centers. The maximum absolute coordinate change for any center is .000. The current iteration is 9. The minimum distance between initial centers is 4.000.

Final Cluster Centers

	Cluster	
	1	2
Organizational culture	4	5
supports BPM		
initiatives		
Employees are engaged	4	5
in BPM activities		
Training programs	4	4
effectively support BPM		
initiatives		
Use of technology	5	4
improves BPM		
effectiveness		
Challenges exist in	4	4
BPM implementation		
(e.g., resistance)		

Number of Cases in each

Cluster

Cluster	1	20.000
	2	30.000
Valid		50.000

Missing .0	00
------------	----

REGRESSION

/SELECT=UseoftechnologyimprovesBPMeffectiveness EQ 1

/MISSING LISTWISE

/STATISTICS COEFF OUTS R ANOVA

/CRITERIA=PIN(.05) POUT(.10)

/NOORIGIN

/DEPENDENT Organizational culture supports BPM initiatives

/METHOD=ENTER ChallengesexistinBPMimplementatione.g.resistance.

Regression

Notes

Output Created			16-DEC-2024 09:40:17
Comments			
Input		Active Dataset	DataSet1
		Filter	<none></none>
		Weight	<none></none>
		Split File	<none></none>
		N of Rows in Working	50
		Data File	
Missing	Value	Definition of Missing	User-defined missing
Handling			values are treated as
			missing.

	Cases Used		Statistics are based on
			cases with no missing
			values for any variable
			used.
Syntax			REGRESSION
			/SELECT=Useoftechnol
			ogyimprovesBPMeffecti
			veness EQ 1
			/MISSING LISTWISE
			/STATISTICS COEFF
			OUTS R ANOVA
			/CRITERIA=PIN(.05)
			POUT(.10)
			/NOORIGIN
			/DEPENDENT
			Organizationalculturesu
			pportsBPMinitiatives
			/METHOD=ENTER
			ChallengesexistinBPMi
			mplementatione.g.resist
			ance.
Resources	Processor Time	;	00:00:00.02
	Elapsed Time		00:00:00.08
	Memory Requir	red	2528 bytes
	Additional	Memory	0 bytes
	Required for	Residual	
	Plots		

Warnings

There are no valid cases for models with dependent variable Organizational culture supports BPM initiatives. Statistics cannot be computed.

No valid cases found. Equation-building skipped.

LOGISTIC	REGRESSION	VARIABLES	
Organizationalculturesuppo	ortsBPMinitiatives		
/METHOD=ENTER	Employeesare	engagedinBPMactivities	
TrainingprogramseffectivelysupportBPMinitiatives			
UseoftechnologyimprovesBPMeffectiveness			
ChallengesexistinBPMimplementatione.g.resistance			
/CRITERIA=PIN(.05) POUT(.10) ITERATE(20) CUT(.5).			

Logistic Regression

Notes

Output Created			16-DEC-2024 09:40:51
Comments			
Input		Active Dataset	DataSet1
		Filter	<none></none>
		Weight	<none></none>
		Split File	<none></none>
		N of Rows in Working	50
		Data File	
Missing	Value	Definition of Missing	User-defined missing
Handling			values are treated as
			missing

Syntax		LOGISTIC
		REGRESSION
		VARIABLES
		Organizationalculturesu
		pportsBPMinitiatives
		/METHOD=ENTER
		Employeesareengagedin
		BPMactivities
		Trainingprogramseffecti
		velysupportBPMinitiativ
		es
		Useoftechnologyimprov
		esBPMeffectiveness
		ChallengesexistinBPMi
		mplementatione.g.resist
		ance
		/CRITERIA=PIN(.05)
		POUT(.10)
		ITERATE(20) CUT(.5).
Resources	Processor Time	00:00:00.00
	Elapsed Time	00:00:00.02

Warnings

The dependent variable has more than two non-missing values. For logistic regression, the dependent value must assume exactly two values on the cases being processed.

Execution of this command stops.